VILLAGE OF
STEGER
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
3320 Lewis Avenue, Steger IL 60475

A. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
B. ROLL CALL

C. AWARDS, HONORS, AND SPECIAL RECOGNITION- Presentation of 2023 Halloween
House Decorations Winners

D. MINUTES of OCTOBER 16, 2023 Regular Meeting
E. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

F. REFPORTS
1. Administrator

a. Department Heads
b. Public Infrastructure/Code Enforcement Director
c. Fire Chief-
d. Police Chief
e. EMA Chief
Attorney

Treasurer Report

Mayor's Report

Clerk’'s Report

Trustee/Liaison Report
Trustee Trotier- Report Submitted
Trustee Thurmond- Report Submitted

oA

G. PAYING OF THE BILLS:

H. CORRESPONDENCE

The Village of Steger, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, requests that persons with disabilities
who require certain accommaodations to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting or have
guestions about the accessibility of the meeting or facilities, contact the Human Resource Department at {708)
754-3395 to allow the Village to make reasonable accommodations for those persons



MONDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2023 BOARD OF TRUSTEE REGULAR MEETING AGENDA ‘

J. NEW BUSINESS
ORDINANCE 1301-

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN
INTERGOVERNMENTAL

AGREEMENT FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE
MUTUAL AID BOX ALARM SYSTEM
{(MABAS MASTER AGREEMENT 2022)

ORDINANCE 1302-
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A VARIANCE
FROM THE STANDARDS REGULATING
LOT SIZE, YARD AREAS, LOT COVERAGE
AND DWELLING STANDARDS TO ALLOW
FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW
BUILDING AT 3620 GREEN STREET.
STEGER, ILLINOIS

ORDINANCE 1303-

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE
VILLAGE OF STEGER TO ENTER

INTO A CERTAIN AGREEMENT WITH
STEGER STORAGE. LLC FOR THE
REDEVELOPMENT OF THE REAL
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3601 CHICAGO
ROAD WITHIN THE VILLAGE OF STEGER
COUNTIES OF COOK AND WILL, STATE
OF ILLINOIS

RESOLUTION 1180-
A RESOLUTION ESTIMATING THE 2023
TAX LEVY IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE
TRUTH IN TAXATION LAW

REQUEST FOR BUSINESS LICENSE FOR FAST PACE MUFFLER 2 INC 3200
STEGER RD STEGER IL 60475 PENDING INSPECTIONS

REQUEST FROM PULKIT M PATEL, FOR PK PANTRY OF 430 W 34™ STREET
STEGER IL 60475 FOR A BEER AND WINE POUR LICENSE

K. ADJOURNMENT

The Village of Steger, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, requests that persons with disabilities
who require certain accommodations to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting or have
questions about the accessibility of the meeting or facilities, contact the Human Resource Department at (708)
754-3395 to allow the Village to make reasonable accommodations for those persons



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
VILLAGE OF STEGER, WILL & COOK
COUNTIES, ILLINOIS

The Board of Trustees convened in regular session at 7:00 P.M. on this 16" day of
October, 2023 in the Municipal Building of the Village of Steger, lllinois. Trustee Lopez
led all in attendance in the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag.

The roll was called. The following Trustees were present; Thurmond, Lopez, Stewart,
Trotier and Joyce. Mayor Peterson and Trustee Perchinski were absent.

Village Clerk Zagone asked for a motion to name pro-tem chairperson.

Trustee Joyce made a motion to name Trustee Lopez as Chairman Pro-tem for the
meeting. Trustee Trotier seconded the motion. Roll was called. The following Trustees
voted aye; Thurmond, Lopez, Stewart, Trotier and Joyce. Motion carried.

Also present: Director of Public Infrastructure Dave Toepper, Fire Chief Mike Long,
Deputy Police Chief Pete Fajman, Community Center Director Diana Rossi, and Village
Attorney James Vasselli. Director of Public Infrastructure Dave Toepper Village
Administrator Mary Jo Seehausen and EMA Chief Tom Johnston were absent.

AWARDS, HONORS AND SPECIAL RECOGNITION

None
MINUTES
Trustee Joyce made a motion to approve the minutes of the October 2" meeting as all

members have copies. Trustee Stewart seconded the motion. Voice vote; all ayes.
Motion carried.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Matt Polanski of 3221 Butler Ave. came befere the board to ask about surveying taking
place on his block. Dave Toepper stated that they are surveying for drainage work that is
going to be done.

REPORTS
Village Administrator Mary Jo Seehausen No report.

Director of Public Infrastructure Dave Toepper They are putting well #3 back
together; we are scheduled to have it back up on Wednesday. Trustee Lopez added that



Minutes October 16, 2023 page 2

we are still due for some street cleaning, Dave Toepper said yes, but we are waiting for
more leaves to fall.

Fire Chief Michael Long For the month of September the Fire Department ran a total
of 178 calls, 157 medical and 21 fire with 41 of those as mutual aid to surrounding
communities. On October 71" we received a call for an unresponsive subject that turned
into a full cardiac arrest. DC Fajman, if you could pass along thanks to Sargent Lane and
Officers Velasquez and Cabazos, they were able to get their AED put on and help save
a life. Thank you for all their help. Our 2" annual Coloring Contest is underway and we
will be drawing 3 winners on the 215t for a ride to school in the Fire Engine. Our Pancake
Breakfast with Santa is coming up on November 26" and raffle tickets for that event
should be going out in the mail in the coming weeks. Our floor drain project is well
underway. Next Monday they will begin the process of applying the epoxy coating to the
entire bay area. The Steger Fire Department would like extend our deepest condolences
to the Muirhead family on the loss of James Muirhead. Chief Muirhead was the sitting
fire chief for the Crete Fire Department and passed away suddenly, leaving his wife and
two young children. His services were last Monday and Tuesday and were a fitting
tribute to a man who gave 35 years to the Fire Service. He touched the lives of everyone
he met and will be greatly missed.

Deputy Police Chief Pete Fajman Chief Smith submitted his report to the board. What
we have to add is: We will have extra patrols for Halloween, we also started our in-
service training at the Police Department for our yearly mandates. Right now, they are
mandating that we have a certain number of hours for hand down training. We started
now with hand-cuffing and use of force issues.

Community Center Director Diana Rossi Just a reminder that we have our annual
Halloween Party this Friday from 6 to 8 pm. it is for kids in kindergarten through 4t
grade. The last two weeks we have had 960 people come through the Community
Center.

EMA Chief Tom Johnston No report.

Village Attorney Gav

Treasurer No Report.

MAYORS REPORT No report.

VILLAGE CLERK Reminded all that he will be out of the office October 18- 20
returning Monday October 237,

TRUSTEES REPORTS

Trustee Joyce reminded all that the Halloween Hours this year are 3-7 pm on October
318t The bonfire will be held at Veteran’s Park from 6-8 pm. Hot Dogs and soda or water



Minutes October 16, 2023 page 3

will be provided by Steger Kiwanis Club, The Steger Area Chamber of Commerce and
the American Legion.

BILLS

Trustee Stewart made a motion to pay all bills as listed when funds become available.
Trustee Joyce seconded the motion. Roll was called. The following Trustees voted aye;
Thurmond, Lopez, Stewart, Trotier and Joyce. Motion carried.

CORRESPONDENCE

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS:

Being no further business:

TrUstee Joyce made a motion to adjourn the meeting.
Trustee Trotier seconded the motion. Voice vote; all ayes. Motion carried.

Meeting adjourned at 7:09 pm.

Ernie Lopez, Jr., Chairman Pro-Tem

Joseph M. Zagone, Jr., Village Clerk



AJSP

WARRANT

LIST

REGISTER # 144

[Nw2]

DATE: 11/01/23 wednesday November 1, 2023 PAGE 1
PAYABLE TO CHECK DATE CHECK NO AMOUNT
INV NO G/L NUMBER DESCRIPTION DIST
ELMER & SON LOCKSMITHS INC
411798 01-00-31100 KEYS 50.00
GEMINI II SEWER RODDING IRRIGATION, LLC
FAUCET VH 01-00-31100 BUILDING MATINTENA 475.00
SCOTT'S-U-SAVE
517296 C 01-00-31805 VEHICLE MAINT 102 .84~
NICOR GAS
10-1-23 52838 01-00-33200 HEAT 23.91
NICOR GAS
8303196 3025863 01-00-33200 HEAT 83.68
CINTAS CORPORATION LOCKBOX
5182114534 01-00-33500 OFFICE SUPPLIES 16.20
READY REFRESH
. 0316702706135 01-00-33500 OFFICE WATER 49.95
AT&T
708754369010 01-00-33700 TELEPHONE 53.33
VERIZON WIRELESS
9946015945 01-00-33700 CELL/AIRCARDS 593.97
QUADIENT, INC
Q1034934 01-00-33901 RENTAL- EQUIPMENT 507.21
T & T BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC. .
116259 01-00-33901 RENTAL EQUIP 141.00
PACE SUBURBAN BUS / VA NP 0D L ,
627359 01-00-33902 SENIOR BUS LEASE 100.00
DEL GALDO LAW GROUP LLC mr .
32718 01-00-34100 LEGAL SVCS 2923.75
GIANOPOLUS, DENNIS G. P.C.
21005 01-00-34100 LEGAL SERVICES 1706.25
ILLINOIS STATE POLICE )
20230906082 01-00-34201 FINGERPRINTS 56.50
OTTOSEN DINOLFQ & CASTALDO, LTD , :
451 01-00-34500 CONSULTING SVCS 450.00
MUNICIPAL CLERKS OF S/W SUBURBS .
23/24 MEMBER 01-00-38901 DUES 30.00
ON SOLVE LLC ‘ .
15292436 01-00-38901 DUES SUBSCRIPTION 5250.00
PROSHRED SECURITY -
1262953 01-00-38917 SHREDDING 64.17
PROSHRED SECURITY
1262959 01-00-38917 SHREDDING 420.00
TOTAL FOR FUND 01 DEPT. 00 12892.08
REGENCY ELECTRIC LLC
10.11.2023 01-01-30260 ELEC. INSPECTION 280.00
TOTAL FOR FUND 01 DEPT. 01 280.00
SAUK TRATIL CAR WASH :
743 10/12/23 01-07-31805 CAR WASH 18.95
VERIZON WIRELESS
9946015945 01-07-33700 CELL/AIRCARDS 224.72
TOTAL FOR FUND {1 DEPT. 07 243.67



CWARRANT
REGISTER # 144

LIST T INW2]

DATE: 11/01/23 Wednesday November 1, 2023 PAGE 2
PAYABLE TO CHECK DATE CHECK NO AMOUNT
INV NO G/L NUMBER DESCRIPTION DIST
ANDY FRAIN SERVICES INC 3 ‘
346207 01-19-30900 SALARY-CROSSING G 3425.74
ANDY FRAIN SERVICES INC o
ACC €29210 01-19-30900 SALARY-CROSSING G 4123.98
TOTAL FOR FUND 01 DEPT. 19 7549.72
SEALTIGHT ROOFING AND EXTERIORS ;
23-3320 01-20-31100 MAINT-BUILDING 7385.00
MONARCH AUTO SUPPLY INC ;
6981-606193 01-20-31805 VEHICLE MAINT 430.55
MONARCH AUTO SUPPLY INC
6981-607383 01-20-31805 VEHICLE MAINT 79.32
R&R MAINTENANCE FIRE & FLEET K
14075 01-20-31805 VEHICLE MAINT 2800.00
R&R MAINTENANCE FIRE & FLEET !
14092 01-20-31805 MAINT-VEHICLES 300.00
SECRETARY OF STATE
RED CROSS TRAIL 01-20-31805 VEHICLE PLATES 10.00
NICOR GAS
8303196 3025863 01-20-33200 HEAT 83.67
HERITAGE F/S, INC.
35014638 01-20-33300 GAS 168,50
HERITAGE F/S, INC.
35014701 01-20-33300 GAS 172.14
CINTAS CORPORATION LOCKBOX . :
5182114534 01-20-33500 OFFICE SUPPLIES 16.20
ACE HARDWARE IN STEGER :
154734 01-20-33501 SHOP SUPPLIES 10.75
MENARDS - MATTESON
93085 01-20-33501 SHOP SUPPLIES 255.29
MENARDS - MATTESON
93248 01-20-33501 SHOP SUPPLIES 85.63
MENARDS - MATTESON B
93312 01-20-33501 SUPPLIES 23.98
VERIZON WIRELESS :
9946015945 01-20-33700 CELL/AIRCARDS 248.32
AFFILIATED CUSTOMER SERVICE INC
R93131 01-20-33703 MAINTENANCE CONTR 477.00
APCO INTERNATIONAL INC . )
00085780 01-20-33703 MAINTENANCE CONTR 1210.00
ILLINOIS STATE POLICE o
20230906082 01-20-34200 FINGERPRINTS 56.50
METRO PARAMEDIC SERVICES INC.
23-395790 01-20-34250 AMBULANCE SERVICE 23199.40
COUNTY OF WILL )
SEP2023-001 01-20-34252 EASTCOM DISPATCH 4574.97
COUNTY OF WILL .
SEP2023-001 BR 01-20-34252 BUILDING REPAYMEN 188.16
TOTAL FOR FUND 01 DEPT. 20 41775.38
SECURITAS TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
6003616138 01-40-31100 SECURITY 129.78



A/ P

WARRANT

LIST

REGISTER # 144

Iw2]

DATE: 11/01/23 wednesday November 1, 2023 PAGE 3
PAYABLE TO CHECK DATE CHECK NO AMOUNT
INV NO G/L NUMBER DESCRIPTION DIST
COY'S AUTO REBUILDERS INC
7128 01-40-31805 VEHICLE MAINT 2008.84
SAUK TRAIL CAR WASH -7
743 10/12/23 01-40-31805 CAR WASH 38.95
SCOTT'S-U-SAVE
517878 01-40-31805 VEHICLE MAINT 399.76
SCOTT'S-U-SAVE
518001 01-40-31805 VEHICLE MAINTENAN 81.13
HERITAGE F/S, INC.
35014638 01-40-33300 GAS 921.14
HERITAGE F/S, INC. :
35014701 01-40-33300 GAS 604.62
MAYDEN, NICHOLAS
REIMBURSEFUEL 01-40-33300 GAS 82.88
SANFILIPPO, JASON
REIMBURSEFUEL 01-40-33300 GAS - 77.00
RUNCO OFFICE SUPPLIES AND EQUIP CO.
921193-0 01-40-33500 OFFICE SUPPLIES 69.99
COMCAST
10-03-23 75247 01-40-33700 TELEPHONE 111.43
VERIZON WIRELESS
9946015945 01-40-33700 CELL/AIRCARDS 743.93
COMCAST
10-03-23 75247 01-40-33701 INTERNET 153.49
COMCAST K
10-06-23 5698 01-40-33701 CABLE/INTERNET 62.70
BANICKI, DALE -
REIMBURSE 01-40-33900 PRISONER MEAL 9.34
CINTAS CORPORATION LOCKBOX : -
5182114515 01-40-33900 ALL. OTHER SUPPLIE 96.14
COUNTY OF WILL T
SEP2023-001 01-40-34252 EASTCOM DISPATCH 20642 .64
COUNTY OF WILL - o
SEP2023-001 BR 01-40-34252 BUILDING REPAYMEN 188.16
RAY O'HERRON €O INC '
2290373 01-40-37302 NEW UNIFORMS 223.98
THE EAGLE UNIFORM COMPANY INC
INV-17716 01-40-37302 UNIFORMS 40.00
THE EAGLE UNIFORM COMPANY INC ‘
INV-17922 01-40-37302 NEW UNIFORM 32.00
PETER FAJMAN ,
REIMBURSE102323 01-40-37800 NEW EQUIPMENT 420.28
SOUTHWESTERN ILLINOIS COLLEGE
26057492-101023 01-40-38700 POLICE ACADEMY 13898.00
SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP o
512713165 01-40-38901 DUES 776.66
TOTAL FOR FUND 01 DEPT. 40 41812.84
TOTAL FOR FUND 01
UNIFIRST CORPORATION N
1201041060 03-30-32900 MATS AND CLEANING 66.31
NICOR GAS o
641000 4 03-30-33200 GAS 188.31



A/ P

WARRANT

LIST © [Nw2]

REGISTER # 144

DATE: 11/01/23 wednesday November 1, 2023 PAGE 4
PAYABLE TO CHECK DATE CHECK NO AMOUNT
INV NO G/L NUMBER DESCRIPTION DIST
MARTE RZAB *#***%|USE RZABM**¥*¥*x
OCTOBER 2023 03-30-33504.01  INSTRUCTOR-AEROBI 360.00
ADT COMMERCIAL LLC
NOVEMBER 2023 03-30-33704 SECURITY SYSTEM 93.78
PETTY CASH .
10/23 PETTYCASH 03-30-38899 ENTERTAINMENT EXP 26.25
TOTAL FOR FUND (3 DEPT. 30 734.65
EXCEL ELECTRIC INC .
128550 03-31-31300 MAINT-PARKS/PLAYG 436.24
NICOR GAS -
551000 4 03-31-33200 HEATING 107.95
SECURITAS TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
6003605085 03-31-33704 SECURITY SYSTEM 3.81
SECURITAS TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
6003613869 03-31-33704 SECURITY SYSTEM 171.39
SECURITAS TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
0003626207 03-31-33704 SECURITY SYSTEM 58.40
ILLINOIS STATE POLICE
20230906082 03-31-34250 BACKGROUND CHECK 84.75
TOTAL FOR FUND 03 DEPT. 31 862.54
TOTAL FOR FUND 03
THORN CREEK BASIN SANITARY DISTRICT e .
OCTOBER 2023 06-00-15800 A/P THORN CREEK $ 431933.11
CLARKES GARDEN CENTER :
0442 06-00-31204 PATCHING 165.00
LAYNE CHRISTENSEN COMPANY i
' 2592037 06-00-31501 WELL MAINT 51064.00
VORTEX TECHNOLOGIES
6857 06-00-31501 WELL MAINT 610.00
CORE & MAIN
T751063 06-00-31504 FOR MAINS MAINT 50.00
M&J UNDERGROUND, INC .
16759 06-00-31504.01  INCORRECT VILLAGE 2255.00-
M&J UNDERGROUND, INC T
M23-0459 06-00-31504.01  MAINS MAINT 3600.00
ALL-RIGHT SIGN, INC .
19550 06-00-31805 MAINT-VEHICLES 300.00
UNIFIRST CORPORATION )
1201041263 06-00-32900 MATS AND SUPPLIES 41.38
COMED
10-10-23 2003 06-00-33100 ELECTRIC 23.56
COMED .
10-13-23 6056 06-00-33100 ELECTRIC 1257.57
COMED o
229 916 703 6 06-00-33101 ELECTRICITY PUMP 2133.97
NICOR GAS
551000 1 06-00-33200 GAS 49.06



e r e s LN e ey W ar g amae

A/ P

WARRANT

LIST

REGISTER # 144

w2l

DATE: 11/01/23 wWednesday November 1, 2023 PAGE 5
PAYABLE TO CHECK DATE CHECK NO AMOUNT
INV NO G/L NUMBER DESCRIPTION DIST
HERITAGE F/S, INC. )
35014638 06-00-33300 GAS 263.29
HERITAGE F/S, INC. ‘
35014701 06-00-33300 GAS 282.78
CINTAS CORPORATION LOCKBOX
512114569 06-00-33501 SHOP SUPPLIES 64.23
USA BLUE BOOK _
INV00157179 06-00-33501 SHOP SUPPLIES 734.55
USA BLUE BOOK
INV00161783 06-00-33501 SHOP SUPPLIES 92.95
VERIZON WIRELESS -
9946015945 06-00-33700 CELL/AIRCARDS 420.01
EXCEL ELECTRIC INC )
128473 06-00-33703 MAINT CONTRACT 282.98
EXCEL ELECTRIC INC .
128516 06-00-33703 WELL HOUSE MAINT 1080.00
REPUBLIC SERVICES #721 . -
0721-007725950 06-00-33710 GARBAGE CONTRACT 70370.,17
UNIFIRST CORPORATION :
1201040060 06-00-33800 UNIFORM SERVICE 99,97
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
1201041262 06-00-33800 UNIFORM SERVICE 203.11
UNIFIRST CORPORATION :
1201042628 06-00-33800 UNIFORM SERVICE 110.37
ILLINOIS STATE POLICE
20230906082 06-00-34201 FINGERPRINTS 28.25
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC. _ ,
6671012 06-00-34300 ENGINEERING FEES 1706.50
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC. - '
6672 06-00-34300 ENGINEERING FEES 1208.00
TOTAL FOR FUND 06 DEPT. 00 175919.81
TOTAL FOR FUND 06
CLARKES GARDEN CENTER :
0442 07-00-31204 PATCHING 165.00
SHOREWOOD HOME & AUTO, INC.
02-385845 07-00-31800 TOOLS 79.32
ALL-RIGHT SIGN, INC
19550 07-00-31805 MAINT-VEHICLES 300.00
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
1201041263 07-00-32900 MATS AND SUPPLIES 41.37
HERITAGE F/S5, INC.
35014638 07-00-33300 GAS 263.29
HERITAGE F/$, INC. -
35014701 07-00-33300 GAS 282.78
PIONEER OFFICE FORMS INC. . )
96078 07-00-33400 PRINTED SUPPLIES 215.96
CINTAS CORPORATION LOCKBOX
512114569 07-00-33501 SHOP SUPPLIES 64.22
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
1201040060 07-00-33800 UNIFORM SERVICE 99.97
UNIFIRST CORPORATION : .
1201041262 07-00-33800 UNIFORM SERVICE 203.11



A/ P WARRANT LIST [Nw2]
REGISTER # 144

DATE: 11/01/23 wWednesday November 1, 2023 PAGE 6
PAYABLE TO CHECK DATE CHECK NO AMOUNT
INV NO G/L NUMBER DESCRIPTION DIST

UNIFIRST CORPORATION .
1201042628 07-00-33800 UNIFORM SERVICE 110.38

TOTAL FOR FUND 07 DEPT. 00 1825.40
TOTAL FOR FUND {7

COOK COUNT DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

2023-3 08-00-31400 TRAFFIC LIGHT MAI 905.01
EXCEL ELECTRIC INC T .
128510 08-00-31400 MAINT STREET LIGH 9002 .27
EXCEL ELECTRIC INC )
128550 08-00-31400 MAINT-TRAFFIC STR 1218.78
COMED
10-16-23 9093 08-00-33102 TRAFFIC LIGHT 4457.32
COMED .
10/11/23 vos 08-00-33102 TRAFFIC LIGHTS 672.12
TOTAL #OR FUND 08 DEPT. 00 16255.50

TOTAL FOR FUND 08

KELL CREATIONS, INC.
23001 13-53-37305 NEW UNIFORMS 435.00

TOTAL FOR FUND 13 DEPT. 53 435.00

TOTAL FOR FUND 13

VISION SERVICE PLAN (IL)

819005348 15-00-36901 VISION INS 1542.91

HUMANA DENTAL INSURANCE COMPANY
181932022 15-00-36903 DENTAL INS 2556.66
TOTAL FOR FUND 15 DEPT. 00 4099.57

TOTAL FOR FUND 15

NICOR GAS

8310002 3611415  16-00-33200 GAS 50.55
HERITAGE F/S, INC.

35014701 16-00-33300 GAS 42.90
ACE HARDWARE-CRETE

187723/1 16-00-33501 SHOP SUPPLIES 22.99

VERIZON WIRELESS .
9946015945 16-00-33700 CELL/AIRCARDS 115.69



A/P WARRANT LIST  [NwW2]
REGISTER # 144

DATE: 11/01/23 wednesday November 1, 2023 PAGE 7
PAYABLE TO CHECK DATE CHECK NO AMOUNT
INV NO G/L. NUMBER DESCRIPTION DIST

JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURITY SOLUTIONS

0900876,/1001623 16-00-33704 SECURITY SYSTEM S 8.74

JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURITY SOLUTIONS ’
39406922 16-00-33704 SECURITY SYSTEM 291.08
TOTAL FOR FUND 16 DEPT. 00 531.95

TOTAL FOR FUND 16

*%  TOTAL CHECKS TO BE TSSUED 305218.11
01 CORPORATE 104553.69
03 PLAYGROUND/RECREATION 1597.19
06 WATER/SEWER FUND 175919.81
07 ROAD & BRIDGE 1825.40
08 MOTOR FUEL TAX 16255.50
13 BOOSTER CLUB 435.00
15 LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND 4099.57
16 H.S.E.M. 531.95

TOTAL FOR REGULAR CHECKS: 305,218.11



ORDINANCE NO. 1301

STATE OF ILLINOIS

|
COUNTIES OF COOK )
AND WILL )

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL
AGREEMENT FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE MUTUAL AID BOX
ALARM SYSTEM (MABAS MASTER AGREEMENT 2022)

WHEREAS, the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (MABAS) was organized beginning
in 1968 in the northwest and western suburbs of Chicago, lilinois to coordinate and
automate fire department mutual aid, based roughly on the Chicago Fire Department's
box alarm system of predetermined resources assigned to respond to a specific incident
or area. Since 1968, MABAS has grown into a mulii-state organization to coordinate
responses to fires, emergency medical calls, hazardous material, technical rescue and
other emergencies and disasters through prearranged mutual aid and dispatch
agreements. The system is designed to facilitate all levels of mutual aid from day-to-day
automatic aid responses to major incidents and disasters requiring significant deployment
of resources. MABAS member Units include the gambit from all-volunteer fire
departments to full-time fire departments from major cities like Chicago, Milwaukee and
St Louis; and

WHEREAS, since the last revision of the master MABAS Intergovernmental
Agreement in about 1988, MABAS has grown exponentially to its current composition of
almost 1,200 lllinois Units and 2,200 total Units in lllinois and several adjoining States;
and

WHEREAS, it is the express intent of member Units that the MABAS Agreement
be in a form which can be adopted by Units in different States where Units may lawfully
enter into agreements providing for their mutual aid and protection. Thus, even if the

MABAS Agreement does not specifically cite the applicable current legal authority for a



particular State and its member Units, the lack of such citation shall not be construed in
any manner as an impediment to or prohibition of Units from other States from joining
MABAS. It is also the express intent of the member Units that all Units adopt this same
Intergovernmental Agreement without modification; and

WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of lllinois, 1970, Article VII, Section 10,
authorizes units of local government to contract or otherwise associate among
themselves, with the State, with other States and their units of local government, and with
the United States to obtain and share services and to exercise, combine, or transfer any
power or function in any manner not prohibited by law or ordinance; and to further contract
or otherwise associate with individuals, associations, and corporations in any manner not
prchibited by law or ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1 et segq.),
provides that any power or powers, privileges or authority exercised or which may be
exercised by a unit of local government may be exercised and enjoyed jointly with any
other unit of local government including units of local government from another state; and

WHEREAS, Section 5 of the "Intergovernmental Cooperation Act”, 5 ILCS 220/5,
provides that any one or more public agencies may contract with any one or more public
agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking which any of the
public agencies entering into the contract is authorized by law to perform, provided that
such contract shall be authorized by the governing body of each party to the contract;
and

WHEREAS, the Village President (the “President”) and the Board of Trustees
(the “Board”) of the Village of Steger (collectively, the “Corporate Authorities”) have
determined that it is in the best interests of the Village and its residents to enter into a
Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Agreement {o secure to each the benefits of mutual aid in

fire protection, firefighting, rescue, emergency medical services and other activities for



the protection of life and property from an emergency or disaster and to provide for
communications procedures, training and other necessary functions to further the
provision of said protection of life and property from an emergency or disaster.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Village President and the Board
of Trustees of the Village of Steger, Counties of Cook and Will, and the State of lllinois,
as follows:

SECTION ONE: INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals set forth above

are incorporated here by reference.

SECTION TWO: APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT. The Mutual Aid Box Alarm

System Master Agreement, (Approved by the MABAS Executive Board October 19,
2022) is hereby approved, and the Village President and the Village Clerk be and are
hereby authorized and directed to execute the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Master
Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A and
made a part hereof. |

SECTION THREE: REPEALER. All prior ordinances, resolutions or motions, or

parts of ordinances, resolutions, or motions in conflict with any of the provisions of this
Ordinance shall be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION FOUR: SEVERABILITY. This Ordinance and every provision thereof

shall be considered severable. If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this
Ordinance is declared by a court of law to be invalid or unconstitutional, the invalidity or
unconstitutionality thereof shall not affect the validity of any other provisions of this
Ordinance.

SECTION FIVE: EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall be in full force and

effect from and after its passage and approval in the manner provided by law.



PASSED this ___ day of November 2023.

Joseph M. Zagone, Jr., Village Cierk

APPROVED this ___ day of November 2023.

Kenneth A. Peterson, Jr., Village President

Roll Call Vote:

Voting in favor:
Voting against:
Not voting:



EXHIBIT A

Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Master Agreement

[Attached]



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
} 88
COUNTY OF COOK )

VILLAGE CLERK'S CERTIFICATE

|, Joseph M. Zagone, Jr., the duly qualified and acting Village Clerk of the Viilage
of Steger, Counties of Cook and Will, State of lilincis, do hereby certify that the attached

hereto is a true and correct copy of the Ordinance entitled:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE MUTUAL AID BOX ALARM SYSTEM (MABAS
MASTER AGREEMENT 2022)

which was duly adopted by said Council/Board at a meeting held on the

day of November 2023,

| do further certify that a quorum of said Council/Board was present at said
meeting, and that the Council/Board complied with all the requirements of the
lilinois Open Meetings Act and its own policies, rules or regulations concerning
the holdings of meetings and the taking of action during meetings.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand this _ day of

, 2023.

Joseph M. Zagecne, Jr.
Village Clerk



ORDINANCE NO. _1302
STATE OF ILLINOIS

)
)
COUNTIES OF COOK )
AND WILL )

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A VARTANCE FROM THE STANDARDS
REGULATING LOT SIZE, YARD AREAS, LOT COVERAGE AND DWELLING
STANDARDS TO ALLOW FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW
BUILDING AT 3620 GREEN STREET, STEGER, ILLINOIS

WHEREAS, the Village of Steger, Counties of Cook and Will, State of Illinois
(the “Village”) is a duly organized and existing municipality and unit of local
government created under the provisions of the laws of the State of Illinois, and is
operating under the provisions of the Illinois Municipal Code, and all laws
amendatory thereof and supplementary thereto, with full powers to enact
ordinances and adopt resolutions for the benefit of the residents of the Village; and

WHEREAS, Sergio Apolinario and/or Quick Interior Trim Services LLC (the
“Applicant”) submitted a request to the Village seeking a variance from the
standards regulating lot size, yard areas, lot coverage and dwelling standards (the
“Variance”) for the real property located at 3620 Green Street, Steger, Illinois (the
“Subject Property”), which has a zoning classification of R-2 One-Family Dwelling
District, to allow for the construction of a new building on the Subject Property (the
“Proposed Use™); and

WHEREAS, the Village’s Planning and Zoning Board of Appeals (the
“PZBA”)held a public hearing, pursuant to proper notice, at 6:30 p.m. on Thursday,
October 12, 2023, at which the Applicant provided testimony, written materials, and
other evidence in support of the Variance (the “Evidence”); and

WHEREAS, the Evidence at the public hearing established that: (a) the



Proposed Use is consistent with existing uses in the general vicinity thereof; (b) the
Subject Property is suitable for the Proposed Use; (d) the Variance will not
negatively alter the essential character of the locality; (e) the Variance will not
endanger the public safety; and (f) the Variance will not be detrimental to the public
welfare or injurious to other property or improvements; and

WHEREAS, based on the foregoing, the PZBA made certain written findings
of fact and recommendation, which are set forth in the docuiment titled

“Recommendation”, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A, and

made a recommendation to approve the Applicant’s requested Variance;

WHEREAS, the Village President (the “President”) and the Board of Trustees
of the Village (the “Village Board”) have determined that it is in the best interests of
the Village to approve the Variance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and the Board of
Trustees of the Village of Steger, Counties of Cook and Will, and the State of Illinois,
as follows:

Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein and made
a part of this Ordinance as if fully set forth herein.

Section 2. Approval of Variance. The findings of fact and the

Recommendation of the PZBA are hereby adopted and, in accordance with said
findings and the Recommendation, the Variance for the Subject Property is
approved.

Section 3. Savings Clause. This Ordinance shall not affect suits pending or
rights existing at the time this Ordinance takes effect, but such suits and rights shall
continue in force to the same extent and with like effect as if this Ordinance be taken,
construed or held to avoid or impair any cause of action now existing under any

ordinance of the Village, or any amendment thereto, but as to any consideration of



action now existing, such ordinance and amendment thereto, shall be continued in
full force and effect.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect

upon its passage and publication as provided by law.

(Remainder of this page was intentionally left blank)



PASSED this day of

APPROVED this day of

Roll call vote:
Voting in favor:
Voting against:
Not voting;:

2023.

Joseph M. Zagone, Jr., Village Clerk

2023.

Kenneth A. Peterson, Jr., Village President



EXHIBIT A
Planning and Zoning Board of Appeals’ Recommendation

[Attached]



VILLAGE OF STEGER
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
RECOMMENDATION

RE: Variance application to allow for the construction of a new one-family detached
dwelling that (i) is less than eight thousand (8,000) square feet; (ii) has a front yard
of less than twenty-five (25) feet, side yards of less than ten percent (10%) of the
lot width or less than ten (10) feet, and a rear yard of less than ten (10) feet; (iii) has
more than thirty-five percent (35%) of the lot area occupied by buildings and
structures; and (iv) has a total floor area of less than the required square feet, on the
Subject Property located in an R-2 One-Family Dwelling District within the Village
of Steger, [llinois

President and Board of Trustees:

The Planning & Zoning Board of Appeals (“PZBA™) convened a public hearing at 6:30
p.m. on Thursday, October 12, 2023 to consider the petition of Sergio Apolinario and/or
Quick Interior Trim Services LLC (the “Petitioner”) to vary from the standards regulating
lot size, yard areas, lot coverage and dwelling standards set forth in Sections 6.4-3, 6.4-4,
6.4-5, and 6.4-6 (the “Variance”) of the “Comprehensive Amendment to the Zoning
Ordinance of the Village of Steger, Illinois,” (the “Zoning Code”) and allow for the
construction of a new one-family detached dwelling on the Subject Property (as defined
below) (the “Proposed Use”), which is located in an R-2 ONE-FAMILY DWELLING
DISTRICT. Proper notice of the public hearing was provided in accordance with Section

10.4.3 of the Zoning Ordinance.

During the public hearing, the Petitioner presented testimony, written materials and other
evidence establishing that the Petitioner is the owner of the real property located at 3620
Green Street, Steger, Illinois (PIN: 23-15-05-221-036-000 and PIN: 23-15-05-221-036-
000) (the “Subject Property”). Also, at the hearing, Petitioner presented satisfactory
evidence to the PZBA in support of its request to vary from the requirements set forth in
Sections 6.4-3, 6.4-4, 6.4-5, and 6.4-6 of the Zoning Code and allow for the construction of
a new one-family detached dwelling that (i) is less than eight thousand (8,000) square feet;
(ii) has a front yard of less than twenty-five (25) feet, side yards of less than ten percent
(10%) of the lot width or less than ten (10) feet, and a rear yard of less than ten (10) feet;
(iii) has more than thirty-five percent (35%) of the lot area occupied by buildings and



structures; and (iv) has a total floor area of less than the required square feet, on the

Subject Property located in an R-2 One-Family Dwelling District.

Further, the Petitioner provided satisfactory evidence showing that: (a) the Proposed Use is
consistent with existing uses in the general vicinity thereof; (b) the Subject Property is
suitable for the Proposed Use; (¢) the Variance will not negatively alter the essential
character of the locality; (d) the Variance will not endanger the public safety; and (e) the
Variance will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other property or

improvements.

Based on the testimony, written materials and other evidence presented at the public
hearing, the PZBA finds that the Proposed Use of the Subject Property will not: (1)
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare of the public; (2)
harm the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity or damage
neighboring property values; (3) impede the normal and orderly development and

improvement of the surrounding property; and (4) alter the essential character of the area.

Therefore, the PZBA recommends to the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of
Steger that it approve the Petitioner’s application to allow for the Proposed Use.

G 2 P P,

James Brodeur, Chairman
Planning & Zoning Board of Appeals
Village of Steger




ORDINANCE NO. _1303

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTIES OF COOK AND WILL ;

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE OF STEGER TO ENTER

INTO A CERTAIN AGREEMENT WITH STEGER STORAGE, LLC FOR

THE REDEVELOPMENT OF THE REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3601

CHICAGO ROAD WITHIN THE VILLAGE OF STEGER, COUNTIES OF

COOK AND WILL, STATE OF ILLINOIS

WHEREAS, the Village of Steger, Counties of Cook and Will, State of [llinois (the
“Village™ is a duly organized and existing municipality and unit of local government
created under the provisions of the laws of the State of lllinois, and is operating under the
provisions of the lllinois Municipal Code, and all laws amendatory thereof and
supplementary thereto, with full powers to enact ordinances and adopt resolutions for the
benefit of the residents of the Village; and

WHEREAS, Steger Storage, LLC (the “Developer®) is the owner, contract
purchaser or nominee purchaser of the real property located at 3601 Chicago Road,
Steger, lllinois (the “Subject Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Developer intends to redevelop the Subject Property as set forth
in the redevelopment agreement (the “Agreement”) attached hereto and, by reference,
incorporated herein as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act (65
ILCS 5/11-74.4-1, et seq.) (the “TIF Act”), the Village previously adopied a series of

ordinances (the “TIF Ordinances”) designating a Redevelopment Area (as defined below),

approving a redevelopment plan and project for the Redevelopment Area (the “Plan”) and



adopting tax increment financing (“TIF") to pay for certain costs incurred in relation to
redevelopment projects located within the Redevelopment Area; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Plan, the Subject Property is located in the
Village's redevelopment area, which is identified as the Chicago Road Redevelopment
Project Area TIF District (the “Redevelopment Area”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the TIF Ordinances, the Plan and the TIF Act, the
Developer may be eligible to receive TIF funds for certain project costs incurred in
connection with the redevelopment of the Subject Property; and

WHEREAS, the President and the Village Board of Trustees (collectively, the
“Corporate Authorities”) have determined that the redevelopment of the Subject Property
is in the best interests of the Village because it will, among other things, aid the Village
in: (a) eliminating blight factors and characteristics associated with the Redevelopment
Area; (b) facilitating the redevelopment of the Redevelopment Area; (c) improving the
environment of the Village; (d) increasing economic activity within the Village; (e)
promoting and achieving the goals of the Plan; and (f) producing increased tax revenues
for the various taxing districts authorized to levy taxes on the Subject Property; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities find that it is necessary for the heaith, safety,
morals and welfare of the public and for conducting Village business and the effective
administration of government that the Village execute, enter into and approve a
redevelopment agreement with terms substantially the same as the terms of the

Agreement; and



WHEREAS, the President is authorized to enter into and the Village's attorney (the
‘Attorney”) is authorized to revise agreements for the Village making such insertions,
omissions and changes approved by the President and the Attorney;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORbAINED by the President and Board of Trustees
of the Village of Steger, Counties of Cook and Will and State of Illinois as follows:

SECTION 1: The statements set forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are found
to be true and correct and are incorporated into this Ordinance as if set forth herein.

SECTION 2: The Corporate Authorities hereby find and determine that it is
necessary and advisable and otherwise in the best interests of the Village to execute,
enter into and approve a redevelopment agreement with terms substantially the same as
the terms of the Agreement.

SECTION 3: The Agreement is hereby approved with such insertions, omissions
and changes as approved by the President and the Attorney.

SECTION 4: The Attorney is hereby authorized to negotiate and undertake any or
all actions on the part of the Village to effectuate the intent of this Ordinance.

SECTION 5: The President is hereby authorized and directed to execute the
applicable Agreement, with such insertions, omissions and changes as approved by the
President and the Attorney, and the Corporate Authorities further authorize the President
or his designee to execute any or all additional documentation that may be necessary to
carry out the intent of this Ordinance. The Village Clerk is hereby authorized and directed
to attest to and countersign any such documents, as required. Notwithstanding any

provision of this Ordinance or the Agreement to the contrary, if any provision in this



Ordinance conflicts with any provision in the Agreement, the provision in the Agreement
shall control.

SECTION 6: All prior actions of the Village’s officials, employees and agents with
respect to the subject matter of this Ordinance are hereby expressly ratified.

SECTION 7: The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be
severable, and should any provision of this Ordinance be determined to be in conflict with
any law, statute or regulation by a court of competent jurisdiction, said provision shall be
excluded and deemed inoperative, unenforceable and as though not provided for herein,
and all other provisions shall remain unaffected, unimpaired, valid and in full force and
effect.

SECTION 8: All ordinances, resolutions, rules and orders, or parts thereof, in
conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded.

SECTION 9: This Ordinance shall be in effect after passage, approval and
publication. A full, true and complete copy of this Ordinance shall be published in

pamphlet form as provided by the lllinois Municipal Code, as amended.

(REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)



PASSED this day of 2023.

Joseph M. Zagone, Jr., Village Clerk

APPROVED this day of 2023.

Kenneth A. Peterson, Jr., Mayor

ROLL CALL VOTE:

Voting in favor:

Voting against:

Not voting:



EXHIBIT A

Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Agreement

[Attached]



THIS DOCUMENT PREPARED BY, AND
AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO:

This space reserved for Recorder’s use only.

REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Redevelopment Agreement (this “Agreement”) dated as of ,
2023 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the VILLAGE OF STEGER, an Illinois municipal
corporation, (“Village”) and STEGER STORAGE, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company,
(“Developer”). The Village and Developer may, for convenience purposes only, be referred to as
the “Parties” or each individually as a “Party.”

RECITALS

A. The Village is a duly constituted and existing municipality within the meaning of
Section 1 of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois and is a “home rule unit”
under Section 6 of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution.

B. As aunit of local government under the laws of the State of Illinois, the Village has the
authority to promote and protect the health, safety and welfare of the Village and its residents, to
prevent the spread of and eradicate blight, to encourage private development to enhance the local
tax base, to create employment opportunities and to enter into contractual agreements with third
parties to achieve these goals.

C. The Village has undertaken a program for the redevelopment of certain property within
the Village, pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1,
et seq., as amended (the “TIF Act” or “Act”) to, among other things, finance redevelopment
projects in accordance with the TIF Act.

D. In accordance with the conditions and requirements set forth in the TIF Act, the Village,
pursuant to Ordinances Numbered 1119, 1120, and 1121 (the “TIF Ordinances”), all adopted on
March 7, 2016, approved a redevelopment plan and project (the “Redevelopment Plan”), setting
forth a plan for the development, redevelopment and revitalization of the Redevelopment Project



Area; designated a redevelopment project area known as the Chicago Road Redevelopment Project
Area (the “Redevelopment Project Area”); and adopted tax increment allocation financing for
the Redevelopment Project Area.

E. Developer is the owner, lessee, contract purchaser or the nominee purchaser of an
improved property located at 3601 Chicago Road, Steger, Illinois and legally described in Exhibit
A, which is attached and incorporated into this Agreement, (the “Property”) and is within the
boundaries of the Redevelopment Project Area.

F. In accordance with this Agreement and the Redevelopment Plan, Developer is
proposing to convert an existing warehouse building into an approximately 111,000 square foot
self-storage facility in Steger, Illinois, all as depicted in Exhibit B (the “Improvements”) and as
more fully described herein (collectively, the “Project”).

G. To induce Developer to undertake the Project, the Village President and Board of
Trustees (collectively, the “Corporate Authorities”) have determined that it is in the best interests
of the Village and its residents to reimburse Developer for actual, documented Reimbursable
Project Expenses (as defined below), which are further described and provided for in this
Agreement, not exceeding the amount of the Village Incentive (as defined below).

H. The Corporate Authorities have determined that: (i) the Project would be, in all respects,
consistent with and in furtherance of the Redevelopment Plan, (ii) the completion of the Project
would not reasonably occur without the Village Incentive contemplated in this Agreement, and
(ii1) as a direct benefit of this Agreement and the construction of the Project, the equalized assessed
value of the Property and the Redevelopment Project Area will increase.

I. Developer understands and acknowledges its legal obligation to pay ad valorem real
estate taxes that will be levied by the various taxing districts authorized to levy taxes on the
Property. Developer’s failure to meet its legal obligations and pay such ad valorem real estate
taxes will result in a lack of property tax increment needed to pay Developer’s Share (as defined
herein). Developer also acknowledges that if it chooses to contest the amount of ad valorem real
estate taxes to be levied on the Property by the various taxing districts authorized to levy the same,
there may be insufficient property tax revenues to pay Developer’s Share (as defined herein) or
Developer’s Share may be reduced; provided however, the Parties acknowledge that nothing
contained in this Agreement shall act as a restriction or limitation on Developer’s ability to contest
the amount of ad valorem real estate taxes levied on the Property.

J. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Developer has agreed, in
reliance on the Village’s commitments set forth in this Agreement, to complete the Project and
take certain other actions, all in accordance with this Agreement.

K. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Village has agreed, in
reliance on Developer’s commitments set forth in this Agreement, to provide the Village Incentive
for the Project.



L. The Parties desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth the rights, duties, and
obligations of and between the Parties regarding the undertaking and implementation of the Project
and desire to establish certain conditions regarding the Village’s approval of the Project and the
Village’s reimbursement of certain Reimbursable Project Costs from the Project Incremental
Taxes (as defined herein).

M. The Village is authorized to enter into this Agreement and take all actions contemplated
by it pursuant to the authority provided under the Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the Parties agree
as follows:

ARTICLE 1: RECITALS, DEFINITIONS AND TERM

Section 1.01. Recitals. The statements, representations, covenants and recitations set
forth in the foregoing recitals are material to this Agreement and are incorporated into and made
a part of this Agreement as though they were fully set forth herein. The parties acknowledge the
accuracy and validity of such statements, representations, covenants and recitations.

Section 1.02. Definitions. All terms in this Agreement with initial capitalized letters shall
have the meanings ascribed to them in Exhibit D of this Agreement.

Section 1.03. Term. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from the Effective
Date and shall continue in effect, unless earlier terminated pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement, until the Developer has received the full amount of the Village Incentive or the
December 31, 2040, whichever event occurs first (the “Term”).

ARTICLE 2: REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.01. Representations of the Village. The Village makes the following
representations and warranties, which are true and correct on the date hereof:

A. Due Authority. The Village has full lawful right, power and authority,
under current applicable law, to execute, deliver and perform the terms and obligations
of this Agreement, and all of the foregoing have been or will be duly and validly
authorized and approved by all necessary Village proceedings, findings and actions.
Accordingly, this Agreement constitutes the legal, valid, and binding obligation of the
Village, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

B. No Defaults or Violation of Law. The execution and delivery of this
Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, and the
fulfillment of the terms and conditions hereof do not and will not conflict with or result
in a breach of any of the terms or conditions of any agreement or instrument to which it
is now a party, and do not and will not constitute a default under any of the foregoing. To
the best of the Village’s knowledge, the TIF Ordinances, the Redevelopment Plan and the




Redevelopment Project Area have been adopted and approved in accordance with the
Laws (as defined below).

C. Litigation. To the best of the Village’s knowledge, there is no litigation,
proceeding or investigation pending or threatened against the Village with respect to the
Redevelopment Plan or this Agreement. In addition, to the best of the Village’s
knowledge, there is no other litigation, proceeding or investigation pending or threatened
against the Village seeking to restrain, enjoin or in any way limit the approval or issuance
and delivery of this Agreement or which would in any manner challenge or adversely
affect the existence or powers of the Village to enter into and carry out the transactions
described in or contemplated by the execution, delivery, validity or performance by the
Village of the terms and provisions of this Agreement.

Section 2.02. Representations of Developer. Developer makes the following
representations and warranties, which are true and correct on the date hereof:

A. Due Authority. Developer has all necessary power and authority to
execute, deliver and perform the terms and obligations of this Agreement and to execute
and deliver the documents required of Developer herein, and such execution and delivery
have been duly and validly authorized and approved by all necessary proceedings.
Accordingly, this Agreement constitutes the legal, valid, and binding obligation of
Developer, enforceable in accordance with its terms.

B. No Defaults or Violation of Law. The execution and delivery of this
Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, and the
fulfillment of the terms and conditions hereof do not and will not conflict with or result
in a breach of any of the terms or conditions of any corporate or organizational
restriction or of any agreement or instrument to which it is now a party, and do not and
will not constitute a default under any of the foregoing or violate any Law.

C. Litigation. To the best of Developer’s knowledge, there is no litigation,
proceeding or investigation pending or threatened against Developer seeking to restrain,
enjoin or in any way limit the approval or issuance and delivery of this Agreement
or which would in any manner challenge or adversely affect the existence or powers of
Developer to enter into and carry out the transactions described in or contemplated by the
execution, delivery, validity or performance by Developer of the terms and provisions of
this Agreement.

D.  No Material Change. Developer has not experienced a materially adverse
change in the business, financial position or results of its operations that could reasonably
be expected to adversely affect Developer’s ability to perform its obligations pursuant to
this Agreement.

E. Corporate Consents. Except for the Governmental Approvals (as defined
herein), no consent or approval is required to be obtained from, and no action need be
taken by, or document filed with, any governmental body or corporate entity in connection




with the execution, delivery and performance by Developer of this Agreement.

F. No Default. No default or event of default has occurred and is continuing,
and no event has occurred and is continuing which with the lapse of time or the giving
of notice, or both, would constitute a default or an event of default in any material
respect on the part of Developer under this Agreement, or any other material
agreement or material instrument to which Developer is a party or by which Developer
is bound.

G. Compliance with Laws. To the best of Developer’s knowledge, Developer
is complying in all material respects with all valid laws, ordinances, orders, decrees,
decisions, rules, regulations, and requirements and resolutions of every duly constituted
governmental authority, commission and court applicable to any of its affairs, business,
operations as contemplated by this Agreement, including, without limitation, the Village
Code (as defined below).

H. Other Disclosures. The information furnished to the Village by Developer
in connection with the matters covered in this Agreement is true and correct, or is the
result of good faith estimates where applicable, and does not contain any untrue statement
of any material fact and does not omit to state any material fact required to be stated
therein or necessary to make any statement made therein, in light of the circumstances
under which it is made, not misleading. Developer represents and warrants that “but for”
the incentives to be provided in this Agreement, it would not undertake the Project.

Section 2.03. Survival of Representations and Warranties. The Parties agree that all
of their respective representations and warranties set forth in this Article 2 are true as of the
Effective Date and will be true in all material respects at all times hereafter during the Term, except
with respect to matters which have been disclosed in writing to and approved in writing by the
other party or as otherwise specifically set forth herein.

ARTICLE 3: DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROJECT

Section 3.01. Developer Covenant to Redevelop. Developer, at its sole cost and
expense, shall redevelop, construct and rehabilitate the Property and shall cause or has caused the
Project to be completed on the Property in accordance with this Agreement (and all exhibits
attached hereto), the Project Schedule, the Governmental Approvals, the Project Budget, the
Redevelopment Plan and all Laws applicable to the Property, the Project and Developer. The
covenants set forth in this Article 3 shall run with the land and be binding upon any transferee of
the Property and shall be deemed satisfied upon acceptance by the Village of the respective
Certificate of Substantial Completion as set forth in Section 3.10.

Section 3.02. Project Schedule. Absent an event of Force Majeure (see Section 8.14),
Developer shall commence and substantially complete the Project, including the Improvements,
in accordance with the schedule attached as Exhibit C (the “Project Schedule”). The Project
Schedule may be modified as necessary by Developer with the prior written consent of the
Village. The Project Schedule shall minimally contain specific benchmark dates for Developer’s



commencement of the construction of the Project, and completion of the Project. Developer shall
commence the construction of the Project within ninety (90) days of the Effective Date of this
Agreement (the “Project Commencement Date”). Completion of the Project shall be evidenced by
Developer or its authorized representative submitting a Certificate of Substantial Completion for
approval by the Village no later than 365 calendar days after the Project Commencement Date,
subject to Force Majeure. An event of Force Majeure shall not be deemed a material modification
as contemplated by this Section 3.02.

Section 3.03. Plans and Specifications. The Developer shall submit or shall have
submitted to the Village for its approval, the Plans and Specifications for the Project. The Plans
and Specifications may be submitted in phases or stages. The Village shall review and approve
the Plans and Specifications in an expedited and good faith manner. The Plans and Specifications
shall be prepared and sealed by a professional engineer or architect licensed to practice in the
State of Illinois. All construction practices and procedures with respect to the Project shall be in
material conformity with all Laws. The Plans and Specifications shall be in sufficient
completeness and detail to show that construction will be in material conformance with this
Agreement.

A. Material Change. Any material change to the Plans and Specifications must
be submitted to the Village for its written approval, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed. The Village’s Administrator, or her designee, shall
review and approve or disapprove any such proposed modification within thirty (30) days
after submission by Developer. Any approved material change to the Plans and
Specifications shall not be deemed to imply any obligation on the part of the Village to
increase the Village Incentive or to provide any other additional assistance to Developer.

B. Limitation. The Village’s approval of the Plans and Specifications under
Section 3.03 shall not apply to the building permit review process. Nothing in this Section
is a substitute for and does not eliminate the requirement that Developer apply for and
receive any or all necessary building permits for construction of the Project.

Section 3.04. Project Approvals.

A. Permits. Before Developer commences construction of the Project, Developer or its
contractors or representatives shall, at their expense, secure or cause to be secured all applicable
permits that may be required for the Project or for the portion of the Project to be performed, as
required by all Laws (as defined below). The Village shall undertake a good faith review of the
submissions for permits or approvals and provide comments to any submission of Developer
within ten (10) business days after receipt of the permit application. The Village shall not oppose
any application pending before another governmental body or agency, provided such application
is consistent with all Legal Requirements (as defined below), subject to applicable variances as
may be required for the construction of the Project in accordance with the Plans and
Specifications. The Project Schedule shall be extended and enlarged on a day for day basis for all
additional days taken by the Village to review the Plans and Specifications.

B. Compliance. The Project shall materially comply with all applicable federal, state,



county, municipal or administrative laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, codes, and orders,
subject to applicable variances, as the case may be (collectively, the “Legal Requirements” or
“Laws”) relating in any manner to the Project.

Section 3.05. Construction of Project. The Parties agree and acknowledge that the
Project shall be completed in material conformance with the Plans and Specifications. Developer
shall construct or cause the construction of the Project on the Property and in compliance with the
covenants set forth herein. As fully set forth in the approved Plans and Specifications, the
Improvements shall include those matters set forth in Exhibit B.

Section 3.06. Developer Standard of Care. Developer shall design and construct or
cause to be designed and constructed the Project: (i) in a good and workmanlike manner and free
of defects; and (ii) in accordance with all applicable Laws and the terms of this Agreement
(including its exhibits and attachments).

Section 3.07. Contractors and Subcontractors. Developer shall not enter into any
agreement or contract, the costs of which are eligible for reimbursement hereunder, that could be
construed as self-dealing or negotiated on other than an arms-length, competitive basis. Any such
agreement or contract, exclusive of professional services, shall be awarded through competitive
bidding. Developer shall provide, within five (5) business days of written request by the Village,
copies of all agreements and contracts with a third-party in connection with the Project.

Section 3.08. Governmental Approvals. Developer agrees to employ reasonable and
good faith efforts to secure and comply with all Governmental Approvals, timely paying all
application fees and submitting all applications and permits. The Village agrees to employ
reasonable and good faith efforts to cooperate with Developer and to process and timely consider
and respond to all applications for the Governmental Approvals as received, all in accordance with
the Laws, including, without limitation, the applicable provisions of the Village Code and laws of
the State of Illinois.

Section 3.09. Prevailing Wage Act. Developer shall comply with and shall require its
contractor(s) to comply with the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act, 820 ILCS 130/0.01 ef seq., in
relation to the development and construction of the Project with the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act,
to the extent that it applies, shall be the obligation of Developer, and Developer shall indemnify
and hold harmless the Village from and against liabilities that might attach for non-compliance by
Developer or its contractor(s) or subcontractor(s).

The Prevailing Wage Act requires contractors and subcontractors to pay laborers, workers,
and mechanics performing services on public works projects no less than the current “prevailing
rate of wages” (hourly cash wages plus amount for fringe benefits) in the county where the work
is performed. The Illinois Department of Labor (the "Department") publishes the prevailing wage
rates on its website at http://labor.illinois.gov/. The Department revises the prevailing wage rates
and Developer’s contractors and subcontractors have an obligation to check the Department’s
website for revisions to prevailing wage rates. Information regarding current prevailing wage rates
is available at the Department’s website. All of Developer’s contractors and subcontractors
rendering services contemplated by this Agreement must comply with all requirements of the




Prevailing Wage Act, including but not limited to, all wage requirements and notice and record
keeping duties.

Section 3.10. Certificate of Substantial Completion.

A. Submission of Certificate. Promptly, and not more than thirty (30) business
days after substantial completion of the Project in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement, Developer shall submit a certificate of substantial completion to the Village
for the Project (the “Certificate of Substantial Completion”). The Certificate of
Substantial Completion shall be in substantially the form attached as Exhibit E. The Village
shall, within sixty (60) days following delivery of the Certificate of Substantial
Completion, carry out such inspections as it deems necessary to verify to its reasonable
satisfaction the accuracy of the certifications contained in the Certificate of Substantial
Completion. Along with the Certificate of Substantial Completion, Developer shall provide
sufficient lien waivers, sworn contractor’s affidavits, and other such documentation to
evidence the completion of the Project. The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be
deemed accepted by the Village unless, prior to the end of the sixty (60)-day inspection
period set forth above, the Village furnishes Developer with specific written objections to
the status of the Project, describing such objections and the measures required to correct
such objections in reasonable detail, which may include, as applicable, photographs or
other documentary evidence. The time limits set forth in this paragraph shall be extended
by the duration of time reasonably necessary for Developer to respond to such written
objections by the Village; provided, however, that absent delays by Developer in
responding to such objections, the Village shall accept or furnish written objections to the
Certificate of Substantial Completion within the sixty (60)-day inspection period described
above. Upon acceptance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, which acceptance
shall be conclusively determined upon the lapse of sixty (60) days after delivery thereof
without any written objections thereto, Developer may record the Certificate of
Substantial Completion with the Will County Recorder of Deeds, and the same, absent
fraud, shall be conclusive evidence of the satisfaction of Developer’s agreements and
covenants to construct the Project and Developer’s satisfaction of its obligations under this
Article. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Village shall have
no obligation to issue a Certificate of Substantial Completion for the Project.

B. Limitation. The Certificate of Substantial Completion relates only to the
construction of the Project, and upon issuance, the Village will certify that the terms of the
Agreement specifically related to Developer’s obligation to complete such activities have
been satisfied. All executory terms and conditions of this Agreement and all
representations, warranties and covenants, except as limited above, contained herein will
continue to remain in effect throughout the Term and the issuance of the Certificate of
Substantial Completion shall not be construed as a waiver by the Village of any rights and
remedies pursuant to such terms.

Section 3.11. Survival of Covenants. The covenants set forth in this Article 3 shall run
with the land and be binding upon any successor in interest or transferee.



ARTICLE 4: FINANCING—SOURCE OF FUNDS

Section 4.01. Developer to Advance Project Costs. Developer agrees to advance all Project
Costs as necessary to complete the Project on its behalf, subject to Developer’s right to seek reimbursement
from the Village for Reimbursable Project Costs as provided herein. The Developer, upon the Village’s
request in writing, shall provide proof of sufficient funds necessary to complete the Project in the form of
bank statements or other commercially reasonable documentation as determined by the Developer in its
reasonable discretion.

Section 4.02. Project Budget. The Project Costs are estimated to be at least Eleven
Million Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($11,450,000.00) (the “Project
Budget”). The Village has approved the Project Budget setting forth the projected and anticipated
Project Costs, and it is attached hereto as Exhibit F. Developer certifies to the Village that (i) the
Village Incentive (as defined below), together with any Lender Financing and Equity, shall be
sufficient to complete the Project, and (ii) the Project Budget, as may be amended with written
approval from the Village, is and shall be true, correct and complete in all material respects.

Section 4.03. Source of Funds. The cost of the Project is estimated to be at least Eleven
Million Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($11,450,000.00) to be applied in the
manner set forth in the Project Budget. Developer shall maintain no less than twenty-five percent
(25%) of Equity in the Project. The Equity, the Lender Financing and the Village Incentive shall
comprise the complete funding for the Project Budget.

Section 4.04. Equity/Lender Financing. Equity and/or Lender Financing may be used to
pay any Project Costs, including but not limited to Reimbursable Project Costs. Developer, within
five (5) days of the Effective Date shall disclose in writing to the Village the amount being paid
as equity and being financed upon written request by the Village. Developer shall personally
guaranteed any Developer.

Section 4.05. Village Assistance, Cooperation and Contribution.

A. Village Assistance and Cooperation. The Village agrees to carry out the terms and
objectives of this Agreement by giving notices, holding hearings and considering the enactment of
resolutions and ordinances and the amendments thereto, all at no cost to the Village.

B. Village Incentive. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the Village agrees to
reimburse the Developer exclusively for Reimbursable Project Costs related to the Project in an
amount not to exceed Two Million One Hundred Thirty-Two Thousand Six Hundred Dollars and
no Cents ($2,132,600.00) (the “Village Incentive”) during the Term; provided that the Village
receives at least Three Million Forty-Seven Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($3,047,000.00) in
Project Incremental Taxes (as defined below) during the Term. If the Village receives less than
$3,047,000.00 in Project Incremental Taxes during the Term, the maximum amount of the Village
Incentive shall be reduced to seventy percent (70%) of the actual amount of Project Incremental
Taxes that the Village receives from Will County. The Village Incentive shall be paid as set forth
in this Agreement.




i. Determination of Reimbursable Project Costs for the Project. Concurrently with
the submission of the Certificate of Substantial Completion for the Project, Developer shall
provide to the Village the Certificate of Reimbursable Project Costs for the Project in
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit G, along with all supporting information
and documentation required by the Village to confirm that Developer has satisfied and
discharged its obligations under this Agreement. The Village shall either accept or reject,
with comments, the Certificate of Reimbursable Project Costs within thirty (30) days after
the submission thereof. If the Village determines that any cost identified as a Reimbursable
Project Cost is not a “redevelopment project cost” under the TIF Act, this Agreement or
the Redevelopment Plan, the Village shall notify Developer in writing within this thirty
(30)-day period, identifying the ineligible cost and the basis for determining the cost to be
ineligible, whereupon Developer shall have the right (i) to challenge in writing the
Village’s determination of ineligibility under the Act of certain submitted redevelopment
project costs, or (i) to identify and substitute other Project Costs as Reimbursable Project
Costs with a supplemental application for payment, subject to the limitations of this
Agreement and the TIF Act; provided, the Reimbursable Project Costs identified in the
Project Budget, if they have been incurred by the Developer, are deemed to be
“redevelopment project costs” under the TIF Act and are accepted by the Village. Within
said thirty (30)-day period, the Village may also request such additional information from
the Developer as may be reasonably required to process the requested reimbursement, and
the time limits set forth in this paragraph shall be extended by the duration of time
necessary for the Developer to respond to such request by the Village; provided, however,
that absent delays by the Developer in responding to such requests, the Village shall issue
its determination on the respective Certificate of Reimbursable Project Costs within the
thirty (30) day period described above. If Developer challenges the Village’s determination
that certain submitted redevelopment project costs are ineligible for reimbursement as a
Reimbursable Project Cost, the Village shall present the challenged cost to the Village’s
Board of Trustees (the “Village Board™) within seven (7) days after the Developer delivers
the notice of challenge to the Village. The Village Board shall consider the challenged
costs at its first regularly scheduled meeting of the Village Board after delivery of the notice
of challenge and at that meeting, shall vote on the eligibility of the challenged costs for
reimbursement. The Village Board’s determination as to whether the claimed
redevelopment project costs are eligible for reimbursement shall be final. Notwithstanding
anything contained herein to the contrary, Reimbursable Project Costs shall be limited to
the expenditures of the Developer for each such line item identified as a “Reimbursable
Project Cost” on Exhibit G, and Reimbursable Project Costs may be allocated to and
transferred from one line item to another line item within the same improvement, without
the prior written consent of the Village up to the maximum aggregate amount established
for the Project. The maximum aggregate amount of approved Reimbursable Project Costs
shall not exceed the amount of the Village Incentive.

ii. Developer’s Payment. The Village’s payments to Developer solely from the
Developer’s Share of Project Incremental Taxes shall be made once annually starting on
April 1% following the approval of the Certificate of Reimbursable Project Costs.
Subsequent payments to Developer shall be made on each subsequent April 1% or until: (i)
the Village has fully paid the Village Incentive to the Developer, (ii) the expiration of the

10



Term, or (iii) the early termination of this Agreement, whichever event occurs first. All
payments are subject to the terms, conditions and limitations contained in this Agreement.
The Village’s obligation to make annual payments to Developer by April 1% of a calendar
year is subject to sufficient Available Project Incremental Taxes (as defined below) being
deposited into the Sub-Account (as defined below) for such payments. If, at the expiration
of the Term or early termination of the Agreement, any outstanding financial obligation
under this Agreement exists, such outstanding financial obligation shall be forgiven in full
by the Developer, and the Village shall have no obligation to pay such outstanding financial
obligation upon the expiration of the Term.

C. No General Obligation. Developer acknowledges and agrees to the following: Any
incentives provided by the Village hereunder shall not constitute a general obligation of the
Village, nor shall it be secured by the full faith and credit of the Village. Any Village Incentives
to be paid shall be payable solely from Developer’s Share of Project Incremental Taxes deposited
from time to time into the Sub-Account. Insufficiency of funds in the Sub-Account to allow the
Village to pay any incentive when due shall not be a default thereon. The Village’s obligation to
pay any incentive is contingent upon satisfaction of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
The Village shall have no obligation to pay any Village Incentive, if there exists an event of default
which is continuing. The Village shall be under no obligation to make any payments prior to its
receipt and approval of Exhibit F.

D. Conditional Grant. The Village’s obligation to pay the Village Incentive is contingent
upon Developer satisfying the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Village shall have no
obligation to pay the Village Incentive if Developer fails to perform or discharge its obligations
under this Agreement and Developer’s nonperformance is continuing.

E. Documentation. The Village shall place and keep on file with the office of the Village
Clerk all documentation received and distributed pursuant to this Article. Any documents
normally exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5 ILCS 140/1.1, et seq.)
shall be kept from general disclosure to the extent permitted by Law.

F. Request Made During Default. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement,
the Village shall have no obligation to accept any Request for Reimbursement and no obligation
to make any payments if Developer is in Default of this Agreement after written notice and
expiration of the applicable cure period, including, without limitation, not being in material
compliance with the Laws, Project Schedule, or the Plans and Specifications.

ARTICLE 5: COLLECTION AND USE OF INCREMENTAL TAXES

Section 5.01. Source of Village Incentive. The Village Incentive pledged by the Village
pursuant to this Agreement to reimburse for Reimbursable Project Costs shall be paid solely from
the Developer’s Share of Project Incremental Taxes (as defined below) generated in accordance
with the TIF Ordinances.

Section 5.02. Special Tax Allocation Fund. The Village has or will establish and
exclusively maintain a special tax allocation fund, as required by the Act, for the deposit of

11



Incremental Taxes received by the Village (the “STAF”) from the Redevelopment Project Area.
The Village has or will promptly establish and maintain a sub-account within the STAF for the
deposit of Project Incremental Taxes (as defined below) (the “Sub-Account”).

Section 5.03. Project Incremental Taxes; Developer’s Share of Project Incremental
Taxes; the Village’s Share of Project Incremental Taxes. In consideration of Developer
undertaking and completing its obligations under this Agreement, the Village agrees to reserve
and annually pledge and pay to Developer the Developer’s Share of Project Incremental Taxes
until: (i) Developer has been paid in full the Village Incentive, (ii) the expiration of the Term, or
(ii1) the early termination of this Agreement, whichever event first occurs.

A. Project Incremental Taxes. “Project Incremental Taxes” shall mean one
hundred percent (100%) of the ad valorem real estate taxes levied on the Property, collected
by the County, and paid to the Village pursuant to the TIF Ordinances and Section 11-74.4-
8(b) of the Act, and deposited by the Village into the Sub-Account. Project Incremental
Taxes are comprised of the Developer’s Share of Project Incremental Taxes (as defined
below) and the Village’s Share of Project Incremental Taxes (as defined below).

B. Administrative Fee. There shall be no administrative fee. The Project
Incremental Taxes are also referred to herein as the “Available Project Incremental
Taxes” and shall be disbursed in accordance with Section 5.03(C) of this Agreement.

C. Distribution of Available Project Incremental Taxes. “Developer’s Share
of Project Incremental Taxes” or the “Developer’s Share” shall mean seventy percent
(70%) of the Available Project Incremental Taxes. The “Village’s Share of Project
Incremental Taxes” or the “Village’s Share” shall mean the remaining amount of
Available Project Incremental Taxes in the Sub-Account after the payment of the
Developer’s Share. As set forth below, the payment of Developer’s Share is limited by the
provisions of the Act and this Agreement.

ARTICLE 6: GENERAL COVENANTS

Section 6.01. Indemnification. Developer agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the
Village, its employees, agents, independent contractors and consultants (collectively, the
“Indemnified Parties”) harmless from and against any losses, costs, damages, liabilities, claims,
suits, actions, causes of action and expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’
fees and court costs), save those caused by the acts or omissions of the Indemnified Parties,
suffered or incurred by the indemnitee arising from or in connection with: (i) the indemnitor’s
failure to comply with any of the terms, covenants and conditions contained within this
Agreement, (ii) the existence of any material misrepresentation or omission in this Agreement,
including exhibits, that is the result of information supplied or omitted by the indemnitor or its
agents, employees, contractors or persons acting under the control or at the request of the
indemnitor, or (iii) the indemnitor’s failure to cure any misrepresentation by the indemnitor in this
Agreement.

12



A. Environmental Indemnity. Developer further agree to indemnify, defend
and hold the Village’s Indemnified Parties harmless from and against any and all losses,
liabilities, damages, injuries, costs, expenses, or claims of any kind whatsoever, including
without limitation, any losses, liabilities, damages, injuries, costs, expenses or claims, save
those caused by the acts or omissions of the Village’s Indemnified Parties, asserted or
arising under any Environmental Laws incurred, suffered by or asserted against the
Village’s Indemnified Parties as a direct result of any of the following, regardless of
whether or not caused by, or within the control of Developer: (i) the presence of any
Hazardous Material on or under, or the escape, seepage, leakage, spillage, emission,
discharge or release of any Hazardous Material from all or any portion of the Property; or
(i1) any liens against the Property permitted or imposed by any Environmental Laws, or
any actual or asserted liability or obligation of the Village or Developer or any of its
affiliates under any Environmental Laws relating to the Property.

B. Waiver. To the fullest extent permitted by Law, Developer waive any limits
to the amount of its obligations to indemnify, defend or contribute to any sums due under
any losses, costs, damages, liabilities, claims, suits, actions, causes of action and expenses,
including any claim by any employee of Developer that may be subject to the Workers’
Compensation Act, 820 ILCS 305/1 et seq. or any other related law or judicial decision.

C. Survivability. The rights and obligations under this Section 6.01 shall
survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement with respect to any and all facts,
events or circumstances occurring or arising prior to such expiration or termination.

D. Additional Obligations. The parties acknowledge and agree that obligations
under this Section 6.01 are in addition to any other obligations of a party under this
Agreement.

Section 6.02. Insurance. Developer, if directed by the Village in writing, shall procure
and maintain at Developer’s sole cost and expense, or cause to be provided and maintained, during
the Term, the types and limits of insurance specified below, covering all operations under this
Agreement, whether performed by Developer or by Developer’s Agent.

A. During Construction. From the commencement of any of construction of
the Project until issuance of the Certificates of Substantial Completion, Developer shall
procure and maintain:

1. Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance.
Worker’s Compensation Insurance, in accordance with the laws of the State of
Ilinois, with statutory limits covering all employees providing services under this
Agreement and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limits not less than
$1,000,000.00 each accident or illness. The Village is to be named as an additional
insured on a primary, non-contributory basis.

il. Commercial General Liability Insurance. Commercial General
Liability Insurance with not less than $2,000,000.00 combined single limits per

13



occurrence and aggregate for bodily injury, property damage, and personal injury,
including, but not limited to, coverage for premises/operations, products/completed
operations, broad form property damage, independent contractors, contractual
liability, and explosion/collapse/underground hazards. The Village is to be named
as an additional insured on a primary, non-contributory basis.

iil. Automobile Liability Insurance. Commercial Automobile Liability
Insurance, covering all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles, including the
loading and unloading thereof, with limits not less than $1,000,000.00 combined
single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. The Village is
to be named as an additional insured on a primary, non-contributory basis.

iv. All  Risk/Builders Risk. = When Developer undertakes any
construction, Developer must provide or cause to be provided All Risk/Builders
Risk Insurance at replacement costs for materials, supplies, equipment, machinery
and fixtures that are or will be part of the Project. The Village is to be named as an
additional insured and loss payee if applicable.

V. Professional Liability. When any architects, engineers, construction
managers, or other professional consultants perform work in connection with this
Agreement, Professional Liability Insurance covering acts, errors, or omissions
must be maintained with limits of not less than $1,000,000.00, including
contractual liability. When policies are renewed or replaced, the policy retroactive
date must coincide with, or precede, start of work on the Project.

vi. Valuable Papers. When any plans, designs, drawings,
specifications and documents are produced or used under this Agreement, Valuable
Papers Insurance must be maintained in an amount sufficient to pay for the
recreation, reconstruction, or restoration of any and all records related to the
Project.

vii.  Independent Contractors and Subcontractors. Developer shall
require all independent contractors and subcontractors to procure and maintain
insurance as required and submit documentation of the maintenance of such
insurance from time to time as required herein.

B. Post-Construction. After the issuance of the Certificates of Substantial
Completion, Developer shall procure and maintain the following:

1. All Risk Property Insurance. All Risk Property Insurance at
replacement value of the Property to protect against loss of, damage to, or
destruction of the Project.

C. General Insurance Requirements. Unless otherwise provided above, all
insurance policies required pursuant to this Agreement shall:

14



1. Provide that the insurance policy may not be suspended, voided,
canceled, non-renewed, or reduced in coverage or in limits without sixty (60) days’
prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the Village;

il. Be issued by a company or companies authorized to do business in
the State of Illinois with a Best’s rating of no less than A:VII;

iii. Waive all rights of subrogation of insurers against the Village, its
employees, elected officials, and agents; and

iv. Specifically name Developer as a named insured.

D. Certificates. Within ten (10) days of the Effective Date and by December
31st of each calendar year thereafter in which the Agreement is in effect, Developer shall
furnish the Village with a certificate(s) of insurance effecting coverage as required under
this Section 6.02. In addition, Developer shall annually furnish the Village copies of
receipts for payments of premiums regarding such policies. The receipt of any certificate
does not constitute agreement by the Village that the insurance requirements in the
Agreement have been fully met or that the insurance policies indicated on the certificate
are in compliance with the Agreement. The failure of the Village to obtain certificates or
other insurance evidence is not a waiver by the Village of any requirements for Developer
to obtain and maintain the specified coverages. Non-conforming insurance constitutes an
Event of Default.

E. Deductibles. Any deductibles or referenced insurance coverages must be
borne by Developer or its independent contractors or subcontractors.

F. No Offset or Contribution. The insurance requirements set forth in this
Section 6.02 shall in no way limit or be used to offset against Developer’s indemnification
obligations under this Agreement.

Section 6.03. Maintaining Records/Right to Inspection. Developer for the Term shall
keep and maintain separate, complete, accurate and detailed books and records necessary to reflect
and fully disclose the total actual cost of the Project and the disposition of all funds from whatever
source allocated thereto, and to monitor the Project. All such books, records and other documents
pertaining to the Project shall be available at Developer’s offices for inspection, copying, audit
and examination by an authorized representative of the Village. With respect to contracts covering
Reimbursable Project Costs, Developer shall utilize commercially reasonable efforts to
incorporate this right to inspect, copy, audit and examine all books and records into all contracts
entered into by Developer with respect to the Project.

Developer reasonably projects the Project to: (1) create  number of jobs, (2) create
approximately Dollars ($ ) of Project Incremental Taxes
through collection year 20 ; and (3) generate a % internal rate of return assuming receipt
of all of the Village Incentive. Developer shall report the following information in writing to the
Village on an annual basis, on each December 31st after the Effective Date (which report shall

15



apply to the prior calendar year), with regard to the Project as of the date of the report: (i) the
number of jobs created to date, under the same guidelines and assumptions that were used for the
projections at the time of approval of this Agreement or as may be reported by tenants occupying
Project buildings; and (ii) the amounts of Project Incremental Taxes generated during the reporting
period and to date, using the same assumptions as was used for the projections used at the time of
the approval of this Agreement. Developer shall timely provide additional materials and
information reasonably requested by the Village regarding Developer’s projections and reports
made under this Section 6.03 including such materials and information as needed by the Village
to comply with its reporting obligations under Section 5(d) of the TIF Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-
5(d), as amended from time to time including, but not limited to, materials and information for the
use of a third-party chosen by the Village to independently verify the Project’s rate of return.

Section 6.04. Maintenance and Use. During the Term, Developer shall cause all
improvements on the Property to be maintained, preserved and kept in good repair and working
order and in compliance with the Laws.

Section 6.05. Real Estate Provisions. Developer shall pay or cause to be paid when due
all Governmental Charges which are assessed or imposed upon the Developer, the Project or the
Property, or which become due and payable. Further, after issuance of the Certificates of
Substantial Completion, Developer may make additions, alterations and changes to the Project so
long as such additions, alterations and changes are made in compliance with all applicable Laws,
this Agreement, the Redevelopment Plan, and as long as such additions, alterations and changes
to the Project do not have a material adverse effect on the market value of the Project or the
Property.

A.  Prohibition on Exemption. With respect to the Property or the Project, neither the
Developer nor any agent, representative, lessee, tenant, assignee, transferee or successor in
interest to Developer shall seek or authorize any exemption (as such term is used and defined in
the Illinois Constitution, Article IX, Section 6 (1970)), during the Term.

B.  Inducement. The covenants of this Section 6.05 shall be construed and interpreted
as an express agreement by Developer with the Village that an incentive inducing the Village to
enter into the rights and obligations of this Agreement is to increase the equalized assessed
valuation of the Property, including the Project.

Section 6.06. Environmental Covenants. Developer covenants that (i) the construction,
development and operations of the Project will materially comply with all Environmental Laws;
(i) Developer shall promptly notify the Village upon becoming aware of any investigation,
proceeding, complaint order, directive, claim, citation or notice by any governmental authority or
any other person which is directed or threatened against the Project and/or the Property and
Developer shall take prompt and appropriate actions to respond thereto; and (iii) Developer shall
promptly notify the Village upon becoming aware of any non-compliance with or violation of the
requirements of any Environmental Law or the release, spill, or discharge, threatened or actual, of
any Hazardous Materials on the Property. Developer shall secure an NFR or NFA for the Property
as applicable and this obligation shall be reflected in the Redevelopment Plan.

16



Section 6.07. Prohibition on Certain Liens. Developer agrees that no mechanics’ or
other liens, unrelated to the financing of the Project, shall be established or remain against the
Project or the Property, or the funds in connection with the Project, for labor or materials
furnished in connection with any acquisition, construction, additions, modifications,
improvements, repairs, renewals or replacements so made. However, Developer shall not be
in default if mechanics’ or other liens are filed or established and Developer contests in good
faith said mechanics’ liens and in such event may permit the items so contested to remain
undischarged and unsatisfied during the period of such contest and any appeal therefrom.
Developer hereby agrees and covenants to indemnify and hold harmless the Village in the
event any liens are filed against the Project because of acts of Developer, its agents or
independent contractors.

Section 6.08. Survival of Covenants. The covenants set forth in this Article 6 shall run
with the land, be binding upon any successor in interest or transferee, and remain in effect during
the Term.

ARTICLE 7: DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES
Section 7.01. Events of Default; Remedies; Cure.
A. Event of Default. The occurrence of any one or more of the following

events, subject to the provisions of Section 8.14 and 7.01(C), shall constitute an “Event of
Default” hereunder by the applicable party:

1. the failure of a party to perform, keep or observe, in all material
respects, the covenants, conditions, obligations of such party under the Agreement;

ii. the making or furnishing by a party of any written representation,
warranty, certificate, schedule, report or other communication within or in
connection with this Agreement which, when made, is or was materially untrue or
materially misleading in any material respect;

iii. the commencement of any proceedings in bankruptcy by or against
a party or for its liquidation or reorganization, or alleging that such party is
insolvent or unable to pay its debts as they mature, or for the readjustment or
arrangement of a party’s debts, whether under the United States Bankruptcy code
or under any other state or federal law, now or hereafter existing for the relief of
debtors, or the commencement of any analogous statutory or non-statutory
proceedings involving such party; provided, however, that if such commencement
of proceedings is involuntary, such action shall not constitute an Event of Default
unless such proceedings are not dismissed within ninety (90) days after the
commencement of such proceedings; or

iv. the appointment of a receiver or trustee for a party, for any

substantial part of such party’s assets or the institution of any proceedings for the
dissolution, or the full or partial liquidation, or the merger or consolidation, of such

17



party; provided, however, that if such appointment or commencement of
proceedings is involuntary, such action shall not constitute an Event of Default
unless such appointment is not revoked or such proceedings are not dismissed
within ninety (90) days after the commencement thereof.

B. Remedies.

1. Village Remedies. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default,
which continues after written notice thereof and the expiration of the applicable
curative period without cure having been effectuated, the Village may pursue and
secure any remedy available at law or equity, including without limitation: (a)
compensatory damages, solely as it relates to uncured Events of Default under
Section 6.01, Section 6.02 and Section 6.05, (b) specific performance, (c) self-help,
(d) injunctive relief, and/or (e) suspend or terminate any payments under this
Agreement.

il. Developer Remedies. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default,
which continues after written notice thereof and the expiration of the applicable
curative period without cure having been effectuated, the sole remedies of
Developer shall be injunctive relief, specific performance, mandamus, or quo
warranto.

iil. Limitation on Damages. Developer shall not be entitled to
economic, consequential, incidental, preventative or punitive damages resulting
from an Event of Default.

iv. No Reimbursement if in Default. Developer shall not be entitled to
receive any reimbursement or portion of the Village Incentive if Developer is in
Default and has failed to resolve any Default within the applicable curative period.

C.  Curative Period. In the event a party to this Agreement shall fail to perform
a monetary covenant which it is required to perform under this Agreement, notwithstanding
any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, an Event of Default shall not be
deemed to have occurred unless that party has failed to perform such monetary covenant
within thirty (30) days of its receipt of a written notice from the other party specifying that
it has failed to perform such monetary covenant. In the event a party to this Agreement
shall fail to perform a non-monetary covenant which it is required to perform under this
Agreement, notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, an
Event of Default shall not be deemed to have occurred unless that party has failed to cure
such default within sixty (60) days of its receipt of a written notice from the other party
specifying the nature of this default; provided, however, with respect to those non-
monetary defaults which are not capable of being cured within such sixty (60) day period,
Developer shall not be deemed to have committed an Event of Default under this
Agreement if it has commenced to cure the alleged default within such sixty (60) day period
and thereafter diligently and continuously prosecutes the cure of such default until the same

18



has been cured, but in no event shall such cure period exceed one hundred eighty (180)
days of'its receipt of written notice from the other party specifying the nature of the default.

D. Non-Waiver. The failure of any party to this Agreement to insist upon
strict and prompt performance of the terms, covenants, agreements and conditions herein
contained, or any of them, upon any other party imposed, shall not constitute or be
construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any parties’ rights, to enforce any such term,
covenant, agreement or condition, but the same shall continue in full force and effect. No
waiver by either party shall be valid or binding on such party unless it is has been
consented to in writing.

E. Cumulative Remedies. Unless expressly provided otherwise herein, the
rights and remedies of the parties provided for herein shall be cumulative and concurrent
and shall include all other rights and remedies available at law or in equity, may be pursued
singly, successively or together, at the sole discretion of either party and may be exercised
as often as occasion therefore shall arise.

ARTICLE 8: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 8.01. Notice. Unless otherwise specified, any notice, demand or request required
hereunder shall be given in writing at the addresses set forth below, by any of the following means:
(a) personal service; (b) overnight courier; (c) certified mail, return receipt requested; or (d)
facsimile transmission, with proof of transmission:

If to Village: Village of Steger
Office of the Mayor
3320 Lewis Avenue
Steger, Illinois 60475
Phone: 708-754-3395

With a copy to: Del Galdo Law Group, LLC
1441 S. Harlem Avenue
Berwyn, Illinois 60402
Attention: Vlado Vranjes
Phone: 708-222-7000
Fax: 708-222-7001

If to Developer: Steger Storage, LLC

With a copy to:

19



Section 8.02. Amendment. The Agreement and the exhibits attached hereto may not be
amended without the prior written consent of the Village and Developer. Consent of the Village
must be approved by an ordinance passed by the Corporate Authorities.

Section 8.03. Entire Agreement. The Agreement (including each exhibit attached
hereto, which is hereby incorporated herein by reference), the documents, agreements and other
instruments to which reference is made herein or therein constitute the entire agreement between
the parties hereto and supersede all prior agreements, negotiations and discussions between the
parties relative to the subject matter hereof. To the extent of any conflict between the terms and
conditions of the Inducement Resolution and this Agreement, this Agreement shall govern and
control.

Section 8.04. Limitation of Liability. No member, official or employee of the Village
shall be personally liable to Developer or any successor in interest in the event of any default or
breach by the Village or for any amount which may become due to Developer from the Village or
any successor in interest or on any obligation under the terms of this Redevelopment Agreement.
No member, manager, agent, or employee of Developer shall be personally liable to the Village or
any successor in interest in the event of any default or breach by Developer or for any amount
which may become due to the Village from Developer or any successor in interest or on any
obligation under the terms of this Redevelopment Agreement.

Section 8.05. Further Assurances. Developer and the Village agree to take certain
actions, including the execution and delivery of such documents, instruments, petitions and
certifications as may become necessary or appropriate to carry out the terms, provisions and intent
of this Redevelopment Agreement.

Section 8.06. Enforceability of Agreement.

A. This Agreement shall be enforceable in any court of competent jurisdiction
within the County of Cook, Illinois by any of the parties by an appropriate action at law or
in equity to secure the performance of the provisions and covenants herein described.

B. Any violation of this Agreement by a party shall entitle the other party to
the remedy of specific performance, and any other remedy available at law or in equity,
except as limited under Section 8.04 above, but in no event shall any judgment for
incidental, consequential or punitive damages award be entered against the Village, its
officers or employees or against the members, agents, managers or employees of
Developer.

C. Subject to the provisions of Section 8.04, all remedies provided for in this
Agreement are cumulative and the election or use of any particular remedy by any of the

20



parties hereto shall not preclude that party from pursuing such other or additional remedies
or such other or additional relief as it may be entitled to either in law or in equity.

Section 8.07. Disclaimer. Nothing contained in this Agreement, nor any act of either or
both parties to this Agreement, shall be deemed construed by any of the parties or by any third
person, to create or imply any relationship of third-party beneficiary, principal or agent, limited or
general partnership or joint venture, or to create or imply any association or relationship by or
among such parties except as expressly set forth herein.

Section 8.08. Headings. The paragraph and section headings contained herein are for
convenience only and are not intended to limit, vary, define or expand the content thereof.

Section 8.09. Severability. If any provision in this Agreement, or any paragraph,
sentence, clause, phrase, word or the application thereof, in any circumstance, is held invalid, this
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid part were never included herein, and the remainder
of this Agreement shall be and remain valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Section 8.10. Conflict. In the event of a conflict between any provisions of this
Agreement and the provisions of the TIF Ordinances, if any, the TIF Ordinances shall prevail and
control.

Section 8.11. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the internal laws of the State of Illinois, without regard to its conflicts of law
principles.

Section 8.12. Form of Documents. All documents required by this Agreement to be
submitted, delivered or furnished to the Village shall be in form and content satisfactory to the
Village, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

Section 8.13. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon Developer, the
Village and their respective successors and permitted assigns (as provided herein) and shall inure
to the benefit of Developer, the Village and their successors and permitted assigns (as provided
herein).

Section 8.14. Force Majeure. Neither the Village nor Developer nor any successor in
interest to either of them shall be considered in breach of or in default of its obligations under this
Agreement in the event of any delay caused by failure or unreasonable delay, after Developer has
utilized its best efforts to prevent such failure or unreasonable delay, in the receipt of any
Governmental Approval, damage or destruction by fire or other casualty, strike, litigation
concerning the Project, shortage of material, unusually adverse weather conditions such as, by way
of illustration and not limitation, severe rain storms or below-freezing temperatures of abnormal
degree or for an abnormal duration, tornadoes or cyclones, and other events or conditions beyond
the reasonable control of the party affected which in fact interferes with the ability of such party
to discharge its obligations hereunder. The time for a party’s performance of any obligation under
this Agreement shall be extended on a day-for-day basis during the period of the event of Force
Majeure. The party seeking the extension shall have the burden to establish the other party

21



regarding an event of Force Majeure and shall keep the other party reasonably informed as to the
nature of the delay and the anticipated time of completion of the performance of its obligations.

Section 8.15. Exhibits. All of the exhibits attached hereto are incorporated herein by
reference.

Section 8.16. Third Parties. Except as provided in herein, nothing in this Agreement,
whether expressed or implied, is intended to confer any rights or remedies under or by reason of
this Agreement on any other persons other than the Village and Developer, nor is anything in this
Agreement intended to relieve or discharge the obligation or liability of any third parties to either
the Village or Developer, nor shall any provision give any third parties any rights of subrogation
or action over or against either the Village or Developer. Except as provided herein, this
Agreement is not intended to and does not create any third-party beneficiary rights whatsoever.

Section 8.17. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence for this Agreement.

Section 8.18. Cooperation. The Village and Developer each covenants and agrees that
each will do, execute, acknowledge and deliver or cause to be done, executed and delivered, such
agreements, instruments and documents supplemental hereto and such further acts, instruments,
pledges and transfers as may be reasonably required for the better clarifying, assuring, mortgaging,
conveying, transferring, pledging, assigning and confirming unto the Village or Developer or other
appropriate persons all and singular the rights, property and revenues covenanted, agreed,
conveyed, assigned, transferred and pledged under or in respect of this Agreement. The successful
consummation of this Agreement and the Project are in the best interests of the parties and requires
their continued cooperation. The parties will use commercially reasonably efforts to cooperate
with all reasonable requests made by the other party in order to effectuate the intent of this
Agreement.

Section 8.19. Assignment. The Developer shall be permitted to assign this Agreement:
(A) as collateral to any lender that provides construction or permanent financing for the Project;
(B) to any affiliate of the Developer; and (C) any entity that (1) has at least two years (2) years of
experience owning or operating buildings of the size and nature of the Project and (2) has sufficient
financial resources, as determined by the Village, in the exercise of its reasonable discretion, to
maintain and operate the Project in a manner consistent with similar developments in the
Chicagoland region (such entity, a “Permitted Assignee”). Any other pledge or assignment of this
Agreement shall be subject to the Village’s consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld,
delayed or conditioned. The Developer shall be permitted to convey, sell or transfer the Property
(X) to any affiliate of the Developer; (Y) to any entity that qualifies as a Permitted Assignee; and
(Z) any lender (or its nominee or assignee), which forecloses on the Property as part of a
foreclosure proceeding or deed in lieu of foreclosure. Any other conveyance, sale or transfer of
the Property shall be subject to the Village’s consent which shall not be unreasonably withheld,
delayed or conditioned

Section 8.20. No Joint Venture, Agency or Partnership Created. Nothing in this
Agreement, nor any actions of the parties to this Agreement, shall be construed by the parties or

22



any third person to create the relationship of a partnership, agency or joint venture between or
among such parties.

Section 8.21. Recording of Agreement. Developer shall cause this Agreement, all
amendments, and supplements to be recorded and filed within three (3) days of the Effective Date
in the Office of the Will County Recorder of Deeds. This Agreement shall be recorded prior to any
mortgage made in connection with any Lender Financing. The Developer shall pay all fees and
charges incurred in connection with any such recording. Upon recording, Developer shall within
three (3) days transmit to the Village an executed original of this Agreement showing the date and
recording number of record.

Section 8.22. Approvals; Materiality. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement,
whenever consent or approval of a party is required, such consent or approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. All of Developer’s performance obligations set
forth in this Agreement shall be deemed complete upon material satisfaction of the same. Except
as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, strict compliance with all monetary obligations hereunder
shall be required.

[Remainder of page intentionally blank]

23



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Village and Developer have duly executed this Agreement
pursuant to all requisite authorizations as of the date first above written.

VILLAGE OF STEGER ILLINOIS,
An Illinois municipal corporation

Kenneth A. Peterson, Village President

ATTEST:
Village Clerk
STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) ss.
COUNTY OF COOK )
On this day of , 20, before me, personally appeared

Kenneth A. Peterson, personally known, who being by me duly sworn did say that he is the
Village President of the Village of Steger, Illinois, an I1linois municipal corporation, that said
instrument was signed on behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of Trustees, and
acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at
my office in Cook County, Illinois the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

Printed Name:

My commission expires:

24



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Village and Developer have duly executed this
Agreement pursuant to all requisite authorizations as of the date first above written.

STEGER STORAGE, LLC, an Illinois
limited liability company

By:
Name:
Its:
STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) ss.
COUNTY OF COOK )
On this day of , 2023, before me, personally appeared
, personally known, who being by me duly
sworn did say that he is the of Steger Storage, LLC,

an Illinois limited liability company, that said instrument was signed on behalf of said
corporation, and acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at
my office in Cook County, Illinois the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

Printed Name:

My commission expires:



EXHIBIT A
Property Legal Description

PARCEL 1:

LOTS 1 TO 22, INCLUSIVE, IN BLOCK 29 AND ALSO ALL OF THE VACATED ALLEY LYING EAST OF AND
ADJOINING LOTS 1 THROUGH 22 IN BLOCK 29, AND WEST OF THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE
CHICAGO AND EASTERN ILLINOIS RAILROAD IN COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, A SUBDIVISION OF THE WEST
HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 4, AND THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 5,
EXCEPT THE WEST 15.03 CHAINS THEREOF, TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 5, 1891, IN PLAT
BOOK 4, PART 2, PAGES 78 AND 79, AS DOCUMENT NO. 165439, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 2:

LOTS 1 TO 16, BOTH INCLUSIVE, IN BLOCK 16, ALSO A STRIP 14 FEET WIDE IN SAID BLOCK 16,
MARKED "RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE", ALSO THAT PART OF VACATED 36TH STREET LYING
BETWEEN LOTS 13 AND 14, IN BLOCK 16, AND LOT 1, BLOCK 29, ALL IN COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, A
SUBDIVISION OF THE WEST OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 4, AND THE NORTHEAST
QUARTER OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 5, 1891, IN BOOK 4, PAGES 78 AND 79, AS
DOCUMENT NO. 165439, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 3:

THAT PART OF VACATED 36TH STREET LYING SOUTH OF AND ADJOINING LOT 15 IN BLOCK 16 AND
LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING THE VACATED ALLEY IN BLOCK 29, IN COLUMBIA HEIGHTS,
AFORESAID, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 4:

THE SOUTH HALF OF VACATED 35TH PLACE, LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING BLOCK 16, IN
COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, AFORESAID, ALL IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.



EXHIBIT B
Improvements

The Project. The Developer is proposing to convert an existing warehouse building into an
approximately 111,000 square foot self-storage facility in Steger, lllinois. The site address is
3601 Chicago Road and consists of three PINs: 23-15-05-218-019, 23-15-05-218-021, and 23-15-
05-226-027 (the “Project Site”). The site is currently operating as a logistics warehouse
operated by Triple A Transportation. The total project cost is currently estimated to be
approximately $11.45 million ($103.14 per square foot of building area).



| obed

ssaiboud |enuep

C Ajuo-ysiui4
| Aluo-ueis

—l

Alewwns |enuen

SUO}S3IA dAIRU|
yse] aAndeu|

Arewwns 308(oid

€2/0€/01 UO ‘33e@

ssalbold — ee— dn|0Y AlRWWNS [ENUBN | | Aewwns
a|npayos Jebais osloid
4 aulpesaq Aluo-uoneing @ SUOISS|IN
@ SUOIS3IN [euldXg | l JSBL [BNUBIA  rrrrrrrrrriiii nds
S)se] |euldsix3y : : \CmEF_Dm SAl10eU| Jsel
¥2/8T/¥ NYL v/T1/€ anl shep 8¢ Japjunds 02
I | ve/6/v anl ve/TT/€ onl shep T JVAH 6l
T v¢/T/Shyl vz/9t/€ onL shep g8 |e214303|3 8l
¥Z/€T/S WO vT/TT/€ anL shep st SdiN ysnoy | /|
v¢/LT/v PPMPT/ST/Y UOIN shep ¢ 3ulio0|4 9l
W ured
| T vT/Ta/v 4 ve/9z/e ant shep yT  pue |lemAig Sl
W 0T ¥¢/LT/€ PAM tT/92/€ anl shep ¢ 1uoJja401S L
o _".m._ 0T ¥¢/LT/€ PAM tT/9T/€ anl shep z sioo(Q a8eien €l
W M.au TT ¥¢/ST/€ UOINPKZ/ET/E PO shep g Suiweld |lep 2l
T - 1 6 tve/Tr/eanl $2/9/€ PaM shep g |993S p181Y Ll
xX 0O sSuluado
- E 1 6 ¥7/ST/€ UOIN $2/9/€ PAM shep T Auose oL
m Suiymed
o | ve/s/€anl vz/ST/TnyL shep ¢T J00|4 93240U0D 6
9 ¥Z/LT/v POM ¥2/ST/TNYL shep sy Sulwesy g
C ] v2/6T/T W4 ve/T/TenL sAep T :0|IS owaqQ L
! v ¥¢/v1/TPOIMZ/TT/CT UON sAep gt 13 I\ owaq 9
[ ] ¥ ¥¢/8/T UOINZ/TT/TT UON shep Tz||lem owaq S
€g/v/TT MeN)
| €¢/8/TT 14 Uo shepg  ou19|3 %
I ] ve/v1/T PAM:T/v/TT UoN shep €9 owaq €
— ] €¢/t/TT 14z/L2/1T UON shep g azi|iqon z
—— ve/et/Lvd €2/1/et 1l shep 19T @8esoisieSa;ys | |
4 U_J< 4 In unfr 4 >m—>_ 4 ._Q< JeN 4 ge4 4 uer pLlg| 4 AON 4 120
¥e0e '€ 10 ¥202 ‘¢ 10 ¥20e 'L 10 €20¢ ‘v 10 $10$S$323pald ysiui4 uels uoneing awep dsel al




2 9bey

ssaiboud |enuep

C
]

—l

Ajuo-ysiui4
Aluo-ueis

Alewwns |enuen

SUO}S3IA dAIRU|
yse] aAndeu|

I I Arewwns 308(oid

€2/0€/01 UO ‘33e@

EXHIBIT C

ssaifol ~m— dn0y AleWWNS [enue) | | Aewwns
a|npayos Jebais osloid
4 aulpesaq Aluo-uoneing @ SUOISS|IN
@ SUOISI|IAl [eUIRIXT | 1 YSeL [BNUBI  rrrrrrrrriiiiiine Hds
w Sysel [euldxy | I Arewwing aAndeu| Jsel
=
=
()]
w
I
(&)
n
=
(&)
w
)
(@)
o
o
| ve/er/L 4 ve/er/L A AepT  Janouing ¢
” vz/ot/L suonadsul
u ve/er/L v PIM shep ¢ jeuldy 123
(] 9¢ ve/ei/L V4 ve/8/L uon shep g ues|) |euly | c¢
i 6¢ ¥2/9/9 nylkz/0z/S UoN shep 1 juied 43
] 6¢ ¥¢/9/9 nyLrz/0z/S Uo shep $T S413 L€
¥2/9/9 nylsz/0z/s uon shep T Jou93x3 Bulp|ing | o¢
| ¥2/LT/S U4pT/E€T/S UON shep g aned pue daid 6C
m ¥¢/01/S U4 ¥¢/9/S Uo shkep g Jamas wiois 8¢
(= vz/€e/s nylL v2/9/s uo shep 1 Yomaus | sz
— v v¢/S/L 14vT/LT/9 UON shep g1 syun |age 9z
1 vZ  ¥2/S/LW4pT/LT/9 UOIN shep GT  aJip Bulid) 52
1 €C YT /vT/9 1U4dpe/LT/S UoIN shep g1 s100Q 10943 e
ﬂ 1 ¢ ve/ve/s 4 vT/9/s uoiN shep gTI0pI0) g J00Q €
ﬁ | ¥¢/€/S U4rT/ST/v UOIN shep gT S||lem 13943 22
[—— ve/S/L1472/ST /v UOIN shep 09 sJ9)00798el01S | |7
4 U_J< 4 _3 unfr 4 >m—>_ 4 ._Q< JeN 4 n_.wn_ 4 uer pLlg| 4 AON 4 120
¥e0e '€ 10 ¥202 ‘¢ 10 ¥20e 'L 10 €20¢ ‘v 10 $10$S$323pald ysiui4 uels uoneing awep dsel al




EXHIBIT D
Definitions

Words used but not defined elsewhere in this Agreement shall have the following meanings in
this Agreement:

1. “Act” or “TIF Act” means the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment TIF Act,
Sections 74.4-1 through 74.4-11 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, as amended.

2. “Agreement” means this Redevelopment Agreement between the Village of Steger,
Illinois and Steger Storage, LLC, and any modifications, amendments, or supplements that the
Parties agree to in writing.

3. “Certificates of Reimbursable Project Costs” means a document substantially in the
form of Exhibit G, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, provided by Developer
to the Village in accordance with this Agreement and evidencing Reimbursable Project Costs
incurred by Developer for the Project.

4. “Certificates of Substantial Completion” means any certificates submitted by
Developer to the Village promptly after substantial completion of the Project in accordance with
the provisions of this Agreement, and in the form of Exhibit E. [See Section 3.10]

5. “Corporate Authorities” means collectively the President and Board of Trustees of the
Village of Steger.

6. “Department” means the Illinois Department of Labor.

7. “Developer” means Steger Storage, LLC.

8. “Developer’s Share of Project Incremental Taxes” or “Developer’s Share” shall have

the meaning set forth in Section 5.03(C).

9. “Effective Date” means the date upon which this Agreement becomes effective, as
established by the first paragraph of this Agreement.

10. “Environmental Laws” means, without limitation, the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act and the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability
Act and other federal laws governing the environment together with their implementing
regulations applicable to the Property, and all applicable state, regional, county, municipal and
other local laws, regulations and ordinances that are equivalent or similar to the federal laws
recited above or that purport to regulate Hazardous Materials.

11. “Equity” means the funds of Developer irrevocably available to finance the construction
of the Project as and when required for the Project.

12. “Event of Default” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7.01.



13. “Government Approvals” means all plat approvals, re-zoning or other zoning changes,
site plan approvals, conditional use permits, Metropolitan Water Reclamation District Permits,
Illinois Department of Transportation permits, variances, building permits, or other subdivision,
zoning, or any other approvals required by any governmental agency with regulatory authority
for the implementation of the contemplated Project related to the Redevelopment Area and
consistent with the Redevelopment Plan and Project, the Preliminary Site Plan and this
Agreement.

14, “Governmental Charges” means all federal, state, county, local or other governmental
taxes, levies, assessments, charges liens, claims or encumbrances relating to the Property and/or
the Project or the operations on the Project including but not limited to real estate taxes and
utility taxes.

15. “Hazardous Materials” means any hazardous, toxic or dangerous substance, material
and waste, including, without limitation, hydrocarbons, flammable explosives, asbestos, urea
formaldehyde insulation, radioactive materials, biological substances, polychlorinated biphenyls,
pesticides, herbicides and any other kind and/or type of pollutants or contaminants, sewage,
industrial solvents and/or any other similar substances, materials or wastes that are or become
regulated under any Environmental Law.

16. “Improvements” shall have the meaning set forth in Recital F and as descripted or
depicted in Exhibit B of this Agreement.

17. “Incremental Taxes” means, pursuant to the authority granted under the Act, the ad
valorem taxes, if any, arising from the property tax levies upon the real properties within the
Redevelopment Project Area by taxing districts, which taxes are attributable to the increase in
the current equalized assessed valuation of those real properties over and above the initial
equalized assessed value of those real properties, as determined by the Cook County Assessor’s
Office or the Will County Supervisor of Assessments Office, and paid to the Village for deposit
in the STAF.

18. “Indemnified Parties” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6.01.

19. “Inducement Resolution” means Resolution No. 1177, titled “Resolution Providing An
Inducement to the Village of Steger and Steger Storage, LLC in Connection with the
Redevelopment of Real Property Located at 3601 Chicago Road in the Village of Steger,
Counties of Cook and Will, State of Illinois” adopted by the Corporate Authorities on July 17,
2023.

20. “Laws” means any law, statute, rule code, regulation, ordinance, award, order, decree,
judgment or injunction of or by any federal, state or local governmental authority, unit, district or
entity or any agency, division or department thereof.

21. “Lender Financing” means any funds borrowed by Developer from any provider of
funds and irrevocably available to pay for Project Costs.



22. “Project” means the Project described in Recital F and Exhibit B, and all work
performed to construct the improvements as set forth in the Plans and Specifications.

23. “Project Budget” means the projected and anticipated Project Costs approved by the
Village and set forth in Exhibit F.

24. “Project Costs” means all costs actually incurred by Developer in constructing the
Project and any costs related thereto and generally depicted in Exhibit F.

25. “Project Incremental Taxes” means one hundred percent (100%) of the ad valorem real
estate taxes levied on the Property, collected by the County, and paid to the Village pursuant to
the TIF Ordinances and Section 11-74.4-8(b) of the Act, and deposited by the Village into the
Sub-Account. [See Section 5.03(A)]

26. “Project Schedule” means the scheduled by which Developer shall commence and
complete the Project as set forth in Section 3.02 and generally depicted in Exhibit C.

27. “Property” means that certain real property legally described in Exhibit A.

28. “Plans and Specifications” means the plans, drawings, specifications, and other
documents for the Project, describing or showing the scope, design and details of the proposed
building, structure and improvements at the Property, as submitted to the Village.

29. “Redevelopment Plan” means the plan titled “Chicago Road Redevelopment Plan and
Project” as approved by the Corporate Authorities on March 7, 2016, pursuant to Ordinance No.
1119, as such plan may from time to time be amended in accordance with the TIF Act.

30. “Redevelopment Project Area” shall have the meaning set forth in Recital D.
31. “Reimbursable Project Costs” shall mean those Project Costs, including those incurred after
the adoption of Inducement Resolution No. 1177 but prior to the Effective Date, for which Developer is

eligible for reimbursement under the Act and the Redevelopment Plan, and as identified as a “Reimbursable
Project Cost” on Exhibit F.

32. “STAF” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.02.

33.  “Sub-Account” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.02.

34. “Term” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1.03.

35. “TIF Ordinances” means Ordinances Numbered 1119, 1120, and 1121 adopted by the
Corporate Authorities on March 7, 2016, pursuant to the TIF Act approving the Redevelopment
Plan, designing the Redevelopment Project Area and adopting tax increment allocation financing

for the Redevelopment Project Area.

36. “Village” means the Village of Steger, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, an Illinois



municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the general laws of the State of Illinois.
37. “Village Incentive” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.05(B).

38. “Village’s Share of Project Incremental Taxes” or “Village Share” shall have the
meaning set forth in Section 5.03(C).

39.  “Village Code” means the Municipal Code of Steger, Illinois, as it may be amended from
time to time.



EXHIBIT E

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
FOR THE PROJECT

The undersigned, GD Enterprises, LLC (the “Developer”), pursuant to that certain Tax
Increment Financing Redevelopment Agreement, dated ,20_ between the Village
of Steger, Counties of Cook and Will, Illinois (the “Village) and Developer (the “Agreement”)
for the property legally described on Appendix A, hereby certifies to the Village as follows:

1. That as of , 20, the Project has been substantially completed
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, which shall include compliance
with all applicable Laws.

2. The Project has been completed in a good and workmanlike manner and in
accordance with the Plans and Specifications, all as set forth in the Agreement.

3. Lien waivers for applicable portions of the Project have been obtained.

4. This Certificate of Substantial Completion is being issued by Developer to the
Village in accordance with the Agreement to evidence Developer’s satisfaction of all obligations
and covenants under the Agreement (as applicable).

5. The Village’s acceptance (below) or the Village’s failure to object in writing to this
Certificate within thirty (30) days of the date of delivery of this Certificate of Substantial
Completion to the Village (which specific written objection, as set forth in the Agreement, must
be delivered to Developer prior to the end of such 30-day period), and the recordation of this
Certificate of Substantial Completion with the Will County Recorder of Deeds, shall evidence the
satisfaction of the Developer’s agreements and covenants to construct the Project .

Upon such acceptance, or failure to object, by the Village, Developer may record this
Certificate in the office of the Cook County Recorder of Deeds. This Certificate is given without
prejudice to any rights against third parties which exist as of the date hereof or which may
subsequently come into being. Terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
ascribed to such terms in the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set his/her hand this  day of
, 20

[Signature page follows]



STEGER STORAGE, LLC
An Illinois limited liability company

By: , its
By: , 1ts
Signed and sworn before me by
this __ day of ,20

Notary Public

ACCEPTED:
VILLAGE OF STEGER, ILLINOIS, an Illinois municipal corporation

By:

Name:

Title:




Appendix A
Legal Description

PARCEL 1:

LOTS 1 TO 22, INCLUSIVE, IN BLOCK 29 AND ALSO ALL OF THE VACATED ALLEY LYING EAST OF AND
ADJOINING LOTS 1 THROUGH 22 IN BLOCK 29, AND WEST OF THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE
CHICAGO AND EASTERN ILLINOIS RAILROAD IN COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, A SUBDIVISION OF THE WEST
HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 4, AND THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 5,
EXCEPT THE WEST 15.03 CHAINS THEREOF, TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 5, 1891, IN PLAT
BOOK 4, PART 2, PAGES 78 AND 79, AS DOCUMENT NO. 165439, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 2:

LOTS 1 TO 16, BOTH INCLUSIVE, IN BLOCK 16, ALSO A STRIP 14 FEET WIDE IN SAID BLOCK 16,
MARKED "RESERVED FOR PRIVATE USE", ALSO THAT PART OF VACATED 36TH STREET LYING
BETWEEN LOTS 13 AND 14, IN BLOCK 16, AND LOT 1, BLOCK 29, ALL IN COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, A
SUBDIVISION OF THE WEST OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 4, AND THE NORTHEAST
QUARTER OF SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH, RANGE 14 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 5, 1891, IN BOOK 4, PAGES 78 AND 79, AS
DOCUMENT NO. 165439, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 3:

THAT PART OF VACATED 36TH STREET LYING SOUTH OF AND ADJOINING LOT 15 IN BLOCK 16 AND
LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING THE VACATED ALLEY IN BLOCK 29, IN COLUMBIA HEIGHTS,
AFORESAID, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL 4:

THE SOUTH HALF OF VACATED 35TH PLACE, LYING NORTH OF AND ADJOINING BLOCK 16, IN
COLUMBIA HEIGHTS, AFORESAID, ALL IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.



EXHIBIT F
PROJECT BUDGET AND REIMBURSABLE PROJECT COSTS

EXHIBIT 1-B: TIF ELIGIBLE DEVELOPMENT BUDGET

|LAND AND RELATED COSTS TOTAL PROJECT COST TIF ELIGIBLE
Land & Related 4,250,000 4,250,000
Closing Costs 25,000 25,000
Acquisition Fee 42,500 -
LAND RELATED COSTS SUBTOTAL 4,317,500 4,275,000
SOFT COSTS

DD Reports 22,990 -
Civil 10,000 10,000
Architecural 34,500 34,500
Structural 15,000 15,000
MEP 27,000 27,000
Landscape 3,000 -
Permit Review 29,400 -
Permit 15,000 -
Surety 10,000 -
Misc. 18,000 -
Developer Insurance 37,500 -
Interest Reserve 691,326 -
Op Deficit 81,830 -
SOFT COSTS SUBTOTAL 995,546 86,500
HARD COSTS

General Conditions 276,478 276,478
Site Work 305,000 305,000
Building 300,000 300,000
Masonry - -
Steel 850,000 850,000
Carpentry 45,500 45,500
Roofing and ACM 754,500 754,500
Doors and Openings 58,000 58,000
Finishes 163,200 163,200
Accessories 10,000 -
Elevators -

Mechanical 775,000 775,000
Electrical 500,000 500,000
GC Fee 250,000 -
GC Insurance 37,500 -
HARD COSTS SUBTOTAL 4,325,178 4,027,678
FINANCING COSTS / CONTINGENCIES / OTHER CONDITIONS

General Conditions - -
Fees - -
Insurance - -
Appraisal 5,700 5,700
Loan Origination 35,000 -
Legal 15,000 15,000
Escrow / Title 6,000 6,000
Site Inspection 4,920 4,920
Additional Property Tax Reserve 250,000 -
Additional Interest Reserve 367,256 -
Construction Loan Fee - -
Project Management Fee 400,000 -
Developers Contingency 454,757 -
Hard Cost Contingency 216,259 216,259
Soft Cost Contingency 55,598 -
FINANCING AND OTHER COSTS SUBTOTAL 1,810,490 247,879
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT BUDGET 11,448,714 8,637,057

Johnson Research Group, Inc. 5/22/2023



EXHIBIT G
(Form of Certificate of Reimbursable Project Costs)

Certificate of Reimbursable Project Costs

The Village Manager
Village of Steger, Illinois

Re:  Steger Storage LLC’s Redevelopment Project

Terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the
Redevelopment Agreement dated , 20 (the “Redevelopment
Agreement”). In connection with the Redevelopment Agreement, the undersigned hereby states
and certifies that:

1. Schedule 1 is incorporated herein by reference. Each item listed on Schedule 1
hereto is a Reimbursable Project Cost and was incurred in connection with the construction of the
Project. Identified on the attached Schedule 1 are the name, business address and business phone
number of all contractors, subcontractors and/or suppliers who were paid directly by the
Developer and for which the amount identified herein shall reimburse the Developer; also
included as part of Schedule 1 are all applicable contracts, paid invoices and lien waivers in
relation to said contractors, subcontractors and/or suppliers as well as proof of payment of said
invoices. The information and documentation constituting Schedule 1 is accurate, verified and
complete.

2. The Reimbursable Project Costs on Schedule 1: (i) were necessary for the
completion of the Project, (ii) have been paid by the Developer and are eligible for reimbursement
under the TIF Act, the Redevelopment Plan and the Redevelopment Agreement, and (iii) were
incurred in accordance with the Redevelopment Agreement.

3. The Reimbursable Project Costs listed on Schedule 1 have not previously been paid
or reimbursed from money derived from Incremental Taxes or any money derived from any
project fund established pursuant to the Redevelopment Agreement, and no part thereof has been
included in any other Request for Reimbursement of the Project Costs previously filed with the
Village.

4. The Developer has kept and maintained financial records related to the
Reimbursable Project Costs listed on Schedule 1 in compliance with the Redevelopment
Agreement.

5. There has not been filed with or served upon the Developer any notice of any lien,
right of lien or attachment upon or claim affecting the right of any person, firm or corporation to
receive payment of the amounts stated in this request, except to the extent any such lien is being
contested in good faith.

6. If any cost item to be reimbursed under this Certificate is deemed not to constitute



a “redevelopment project cost” within the meaning of the TIF Act and the Redevelopment
Agreement, Developer shall have the right to identify and substitute other eligible Reimbursable
Project Costs for payment hereunder, subject to limitations under the Redevelopment Agreement.

8. The Redevelopment Agreement is in full force and effect; and no Event of Default
exists under the Redevelopment Agreement.

9. All of the Developer’s representations and warranties set forth in the
Redevelopment Agreement remain true and correct as of the date hereof.

10. The development and construction of the Project complies with the Project
Schedule.

11. The Reimbursable Project Costs set forth herein for the Project is not more than
One Million Three Hundred Ninety-One Thousand Six Hundred Dollars and No Cents
($1,391,600).

Developer agrees that if prior to the time of acceptance by the Village any matter certified
to herein by it will not be true and correct in all material respects at such time as if then made, it
will immediately so notify the Village. Except to the extent, if any, that prior to the time of the
Village’s approval of Reimbursable Project Costs for the Project, the Village shall receive written
notice to the contrary from the Developer, each matter certified to herein shall be deemed once
again to be certified as true and correct at the date of approval of Reimbursable Project Costs as if
then made.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set his/her hand this  day of
, 20

By:

Signed and sworn before me by

this ___ day of , 20

Notary Public

APPROVED:
VILLAGE OF UNIVERSITY PARK,
ILLINOIS, an Illinois municipal corporation

By:

Name:

Title:




Schedule 1

Reimbursement Schedule for Reimbursable Project Costs (RPC)

Date:
Page of

Total Project Costs Incurred for the Area C Project: $

Vendor Phone Description Project Budget Invoice | Payment Total Requested
Name/Address Item (Exhibit F) Date Date Amount Paid Certification
Amount

Total RPC Request for the Area C Project: §

**Attached hereto are the contracts, invoices, proof of payment and lien waivers corresponding to each of
the above cited vendors for which the Developer seeks such costs to be certified as a Reimbursable
Project Cost.

Signature of Developer






RESOLUTION NO. 1180

A RESOLUTION ESTIMATING THE 2023 TAX LEVY
IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE TRUTH IN TAXATION LAW

WHEREAS, the Village of Steger, Counties of Cook and Will, State of lllinois (the “Village”)
is a non-home rule municipality crganized and operating under the Illinois Municipal Code (65
ILCS 5/1-1-1, et seq.) and has full powers to enact ordinances and adopt resolutions for the
benefit of the residents of the Village; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor, Who is also the President of the Village (the "President”), and the
Board of Trustees of the Village (together with the President, the “Corporate Authorities”™) are
committed to ensuring the effective administration of government; and :

WHEREAS, the Truth in Taxation Law (35 ILCS 200/18-55, et seq.) requires that the
Corporate Authorities determine the Village’s probable aggregate levy, which is the annual
corporate levy and those special purpose levies, not including debt service levies and levies made
for the purpose of paying amounts due under public building commission leases (the “Aggregate
Levy”), estimated to be necessary to be raised by taxation for 2023 (and collected in 2024); and

WHEREAS, in the event the Corporate Authorities estimates the 2023 probable Aggregate
Levy (excluding election costs) to be more than 105% of the amount of property taxes extended
in 2023 by the respective County Clerks plus abatements for the 2022 levy, the Corporate
Authorities are required to give public notice and hold a public hearing on its infent to adopt the
2023 levy; and

WHEREAS, the amount of the property taxes extended, exclusive of debt service levies,
on behalf of the Village for the 2022 levy was approximately $2,388,447; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities determine the amount of money, exclusive of debt
service levies and election costs, which is estimated to be necessary to be raised by taxation for
the year 2023 upon the taxable property in the Village to be approximately $2,487,720, which
does not exceed 105% of the previous year's extension;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees of the
Village of Steger, Cook and Will Counties, lllinois that a determination is hereby made that the
2023 estimated Aggregate Levy, exclusive of election costs, will not exceed 105% of the amount
of property taxes extended, including any amounts abated upon the final Aggregate Levy of the
preceding year.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



ADOPTED this 5" day of November 2023, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:
ABSTENTION:

Attest:

Joseph Zagone, Village Clerk

Approved:

Kenneth A. Peterson, Jr., Village President





